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The Good old days when Indian Railways
served Murree Beer

( vii )

Tea.—PBread and butlier with cither jam, marmalade, golden syrup or
one egg aad ons cup of tea,

LIST OF WINES, SPIRITS, ETC.

Per quart. | Per perz. Perlpeg.
e Rs.a.p. Spirils, Rs. a ';'; K;.a.-p
te Wine. . tmpo W e e G S
South African * Witzenberg™ {w::?idm*.t Eoii!ﬁ: 5 : ;
White Dry e & 8 0 imoortedBrandy 2 5 0.1 2 6
P“‘ wanc | (without soda.)
Rf.?p. ! Imported Gin 115 0...016 8
=3 Ay | {w:moutsodi. 3
Port.... Liquecr
Imported Port and Port Type glass.
Aoy oo S Rs. a.
Vermouth. South African springbok (1926) 1 11
French and Italias Type 013 0| Ligueur Brandy.
Gin acd Vermouth w1 1 0| Othes Liqueurs SR o0 ¢
!‘“’AWI od o Dl WI‘ axd Indian-wmade Beers.
' ~ Per glass, | Gold “Ribbon ™ lager... At Provincial
m-.g;m Cordial, 4’ I%s, : p&. 1 rates.
uesh ' ' Cach
Orcange Squesh, etC. Crenrs Rs a.
Pcr bottle. | Sumatra e 072
P.
Dry Ginger Ale Keliner's s O li ice. Per glass,
Soda water < ) u Rs a.
Swael mincrzls T - O 4 0] Withorwithoutdrinks. 0 1
Carew's Products and Murro¢ Boer.
Provincial Roltes.
BIHAR. C.P:
Full Hal*. | Fulll Il
Rs. a. p. Rs. a, p. Rs o Rs. a.
Rosa XXX Rum (withoutzoda) ... 1713 0 013 6 2 0 1 0
Rosa old Rum  ( o Ay S B > 014 & 20 10
Rosa Tiger Rum{( .. ) i Lk 010 @ 1 4 010
e o adie snolitr oon
St o (o QR C il T s
Per gt Perql
Gold Ribbon lager 115 © ) 5

When ice is supplied with wines, aerated waters, &c an additional charge of
onc anna per glass will be made.,
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VISION STATEMENT

QOur office 15 1n the market

MISSION STATEMENT

We the people of Murree Brewery Co. Ltd. make our personal commitment to
first understand our customers' requirement then to meet and exceed their

expectations, by performing the correct tasks on time and every time through:

C ontinuous improvement
A lignment of our missions and goals
R csponsibility and respect of our jobs and each other

E ducate one another
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ESTABLISHED 1860
CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman-Non Executive Director
CEQ/Dircetor-Executive Dircetor
Mon-Executive Direclor
Mon-Executive Director
Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

PRINCIPAL OFFICERS

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Head of Internal Audit

Deputy General Manager (Brewery Division)
Business Manager (Murree Glass)

Plant Manager  (  // M

General Manager (Tops)

Factory Manager (Murree Sparkletts)

AUDIT & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

HUMAN RESOURCE & REMUNERATION

AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE

AUDITORS

Mg KPMG Tasecer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants.

6" Floor. State Life Bldg.
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad.

Ch. Mucen Afzal

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara
Mr. Aamir H, Shirazi

Mrs, Goshi M. Bhandara
Prof. Khalid Axiz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar

Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

Mr. Mazhar Igbal

Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon
Malik Sagib

Mr. Fakher-e-Mahmood
Mr. Arshad Zaheer

Mr. Zaka ud Din

Mr, Talat Yagoob

Mr. Fayyaz Ahmad

Mr. Shahbaz aider Agha  (Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Afzal i Member)
Prof, Khahd Aziz Mirza (Member)
Mrs., Goshi M. Bhandara {Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad (Member)

Prof. Khalid Axiz Mirza {Chairman)

Ch. Mucen Afzal {Member)
Mr. Aamir H. Shirax {Member)
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara (Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar {Member)

Askari Commercial Bank Lid, Islamabad

Standard Chartered Bank, [slamabad

National Bank of Pakistan, Rawalpindi / Hattar

Bank Alfalah Ltd, Rawalpindi

The Bank of Khyher, Hattar

Allied Bank Ltd, Rwp/Lhe/Gujranw/F Abad/Multan
Sahtwal/Murrce/Sargodha

United Bank Limited. Islamabad.
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ESTABLISHED 1860
CORPORATE INFORMATION

Murree Brewery Company Limited
3-National Park Road. Rawalpindi
Tel: 051-3367041-47, Fax: 051-3584420

E-mail: murree brewervidmurrechrewery.com

murbrieicybernet.pk

Murree Brewery Company Limited
3-National Park Road. Rawalpindi
Tel: 051-5567041-47, Fax: 051-53584420

Tops Food & Beverages
3-National Park Road, Rawalpindi
Tel: 051-556T041-47. Fax: 051-5565461

Plot No. 14/1. Phasc 1, Industrial Estate,

Hartar, District Haripur (KPR
Tel: 0995-617013, 617493, 617494

Murree Sparkletts

Plot Mo, 102, Phasc I, Industrial Estate,

Hattar, District Haripur (K.P.K)

Murree Glass
Plot No. 24, Phase 111, Industrial Estate,
Hattar, District Haripur (K.P.K)

Tel: 0995-617233, 0995-617188

DISTRIBUTION OFFICES

Tops Food & Beverages

121/3, Industrial Estate, Kot Lakhpat,
Lahore, (Tel: 042-5117501)

Aziz Chowk Pindi Bypass,
Galla Sonica Industry, G.T.Road,
Gujranwala (Tel: 035-3891571)

Mansoora Abad

Near Sant Sing Raillway Gate
Jumra Road. Faisalabad

Tel: (041-8522182 & 2420580)

[64/13, Near Winter Time,

Small Industries Estate, Sahiwal

Mobile: 0335-3611125
0321-6954001

Ratti Gali, Ayubia Road, Murree
Maoh: 0335-5111047

(vi)

(1)

(ii)

Plot No. 28-B Small
Industrial Estate Opp.
Siddique Kantawala Main
Lahore Road, Sargodha
Maob: 0335-5611103

SHARE REGISTRAR

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited
CDC Housc 99-B, Block “B® SMCHS, Main
Shahra-e-Faisal Karachi-74400,

Tel: +(92-21)111-111-500

Fax: +(92-21)034326053, Email:infofedesrsl.com

LEGAL ADVISORS
Hamid Law Associates,
409-410, Alfalah Building,
Shahrah-¢-Quaid-e-Azam
Lahore. Tel: 042-6301801

Mr. Umer Abdullah (Advoeate)

Chaudhary Law Associates

Advocate High Court

Flats No. 5 & 6, I Floor, MICCOP Center,
1. Mozang Road, Lahore,

Cell # 0300-8430877, 0345-8412222

(11i) Mr, Muhammad Ilyas Sheikh

(i)

(i)

(iii)

House No, 37, Street No. 02, Mohalla
Phase 5, Bahria Town, lslamabad.

TAX ADVISORS

Mascem Zafar Associates
10-Commercial Building,
Shahrah-¢-Quaid-e-Azam. Lahore,
Tel: 042-37314315-16

Sheikh Law Associates

G 313-316, Imran Mansion,

Gordon College Road, Rawalpindi,

Ph: 051-5770500 Website: www.sla.net.pk

MW/ KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountanis.

6™ Floor, State Life Bldg,
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad,

CORPORATE ADVISOR

RS Corporate Advisory

First Floor, Plot No. 62, Central Commercial
Arca (CCA), Block-T, Phase -2, Detence
Housing Authority . Lahore Cantt-Pakistan.
Tel: +92 42 357 47 904

Websile: www.rscorporate.com
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Seard of Direclers

Ch. Mueen Afzal

Chairman -Non Executive Director

Ch. Muecn Afzal afier getting his MA Degree from Oxford University joined the Civil Service
of Pakistan in 1964, finally retiring from Government Service in 2002. While in service, he held
several important positions which included Finance Secretary in Balochistan (1981-84), Finance
Secretary in the Punjab (1984-86), Economic Minister in the Pakistan Embassy in Washington,
D. C, USA (1987-90). Later, he was Health Secretary, Government of Pakistan (1995-96).
Finance Secretary in Islamabad (1996-1998) and Sceretary General, Finance & Economic
affairs from 1999-2002.

He was awarded Hilal-e-Imtiaz for distinguished public service in 2003 by the Government of
Pakistan,

After his retirement from the civil service, he held a number of appointments in the corporate
sector. At present, he is Chairman of the Board of Murree Brewery Company Ltd, and member
of Audit and Risk Management Committee as well as 1R & Remuneration and Nomination
Committee. He was Chairman of the Board of Pakistan Tobacco Company and as well as
Chairman of Akzo Nobel Pakistan.

He 1s a founder director of the Pakistan Centre of Philanthropy and on the Board of
Beaconhouse, National University. He is also Chairman of IDEAS, a think tank which
concentrates on research in to various aspects of public policy.
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Peard of Direclors

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

CEO/Director - Executive Director

Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara started his family business, Murree Brewery Co. Ltd. Rawalpindi.
one of the oldest public limited companies of the sub-continent in 1997.

Joined Board of Directors of the company in 1998, Before this he has significant exposure to
fields operation including production, project development. development planning. conceptual

engineering and operation supports in the brewery and its other divisions.

In June, 2005 became Exccutive Director till 2008, In June, 2008 was appointed as Chiefl
Executive Officer of the Murree Brewery Group of Companies on the demise of his father.

The Company has also other divisions manufacturing food products, fruit juices. mineral water,
non-alcoholic products and glass containers. The traditional activities of the Company are
brewing and distilling of fine liquors and beers. With the passage of time the company has
increased the product lines and capacity as well.

e Holds a Master Degree in Business & Administration,

e [Ex-Member of the National Assembly of Pakistan on seat reserved for Minoritics (2013-2018).

s Currently President of Rawalpindi Parst Anjuman.

e Representing and helping following Minority communities of Pakistan Parsi, Sikhs, Baha'is.
Buddhists, Kalash and doing other social and welfare activities.

o Attended various LUMS workshops on business.

o Completed Directors’ Training Program from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance.
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Soeard of Direclors

Mr. Aamir H. Shirazi

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Aamir H. Shirazi is the President of Atlas Group.

He has over 36 years of corporate management experience. He has to his credit, work experience
in Honda - America. Besides working at various positions in Atlas Group, he also served as the
Chief” Executive of Atlas Honda.

He 1s currently the Chairman of Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited, Atlas Honda Limited,
Atlas Battery Limited, Atlas Engincering (Private) Limited, and Atlas Autos (Private) Limited,
He serves on the Boards of Shirazi Investments, Shirazi Trading and Murree Brewery. He was
appointed as a Director on the Board of’ Lahore Stock Exchange for two consecutive terms by the
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

He is currently a member of the Board of Governors of Lahore University of Management
Science. He serves as an Honorary Consul General of Japan and is the Patron-in-Chief of
Pakistan Japan Cultural Association in Lahore.

He graduated from the Claremont McKenna College and completed his OPM from the Harvard
Business School.
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Peard of Direclors

Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

Non-Executive Director

Due to untimely death of Mr. M. P. Bhandara in June, 2008, Mrs. Goshi M Bhandara was invited
to join MBC Board against casual vacancy. Since then she is on the Board. She is also member

of Audit and Risk Management Committec.

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha

Independent Director

He got his bachelor’s degree in finance from Indiana University, USA and an cxecutive MBA
degree from NCB&E, Lahore. He has 32 years™ experience of Insurance Industry in Pakistan.
Currently he is working as CEO with Hellenic Sun Insurance Brokers (Pvt.) Lid. He served as
director on the board of Capital Investment Bank Ltd. in 2015-16. He also served as director on
the Board of Samba Bank Ltd. since 2015-17. He 1s an Honorary Consul General of Greece in
Lahore since 2007. He is a Board member of Zahidjee Textiles Ltd. & Premier Sugar Mills Lid.
He is the Chairman of Bhandara Foundation, a Trustee of A New Beginning and Mohammad
Raza Faroogq Memorial Trust.
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Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza

Independent Director

Mr. Mirza is a Masters of Commerce (M.Com) from University of Punjab, Lahore, and has also
been awarded an honorary doctorate degree by the Institute of Business Management, Karachi.
He has about 53 years of work experience.

Mr. Mirza served for about seven years in various positions in Investment Corporation of
Pakistan (ICP). and then for over 6 years in the Credit & Finance Corporation, a merchant bank
n London. Subsequently, for about two decades, he remained on the professional investment
staff of the International Finance Corporation (IFC) (Member, World Bank Group). Besides this,
he has also served as the founding Chairman of Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(three years); Sector Manager for Financial Scctor Development, East Asia & Pacific Region,
The World Bank, Washington DC, USA (about four years): Chairman and Chief Execcutive,
Monopoly Control Authority (one vear); founding Chairman and Chief Exccutive Competition
Commussion of Pakistan (three years); and Member, Competition Appellate Tribunal (about
cight months). Mr. Mirza joined the Lahore University of Management Sciences (LUMS) in
2010 and is at present Professor of Practice. Mr. Mirza is also an Independent Director and
Chairman of the Board of both Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited as well as the Board of Awwal
Modaraba, and an Independent Director on the Boards of Silkbank and Murrec Brewery
Company Limited. Recently, he was appointed Chairman, Securities and Exchange Policy
Board.

Significant among his regular consultancy assignments are Finance Consultant. WAPDA; and
Evaluator, Investment Evaluation Unit, The World Bank Group.
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Peard ef Direclers

Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar

Independent Director

Career: Mr. Akhtar graduated in 1976 from University of Punjab with majors in Economics. He
later attended an MBA program at School of Business and Commerce [slamabad and sccured
distinction in Business Policy & Strategy and Human Resource Management. He completed his
professional training with Klynveld Peat Marwick Goerdeler (KPMG) and passed Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (Inter) examination in 1981, In 1989 Mr, Akhtar was awarded
a USAID scholarship and he completed Petroleum Management Program at Arthur D. Little Inc
Boston, U.S.A.

Mr. Akhtar is responsible for METRO’s Corporate Affairs since 2007. Being part of the senior
management team, he has contributed towards successfully establishing the METRO Pakistan’s
business in Pakistan. Prior to joining METRO, he served as General Manager Corporate Affairs
for a Dutch Multinational Company (SHV Energy) for over 9 years. Mr. Akhtar has a versatile
experience of more than 35 years of working with local and multinational companies in Pakistan.
During this period, he served in scnior management positions in the field of Finance, Human
Resources, Procurement and Corporate Affairs.

Mr. Akhtar is a Certified Director from the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, He 1s
also an independent Director on the Board of Directors of LOTTE Chemical Pakistan Limited
and in June 2020 was re-elected to the Board for the third term and currently is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and Chairman of HR & Remuneration Committec.

QOutside interests

« Director Corporate Affairs  METRO Pakistan (Pvt) Ltd

« Director Star Farm Pakistan (Pvt) Limited (METRO Group Company)
« Director CABI-SFPK Joint Venture

= Independent Director-LOTTE Chemical Pakistan Limited

» Dircctor CORE
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Poard of Direclors

Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad, FCA

Independent Director

Ms Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad, FCA is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan. She has 20 years of post-qualification expericnce in finance. audit,
capital markets, Islamic finance and corporate governance.

Currently, Jahanara is the Executive Director Corporate Governance and Group Financial
Advisor to the Bibojee Group of Companics.

Previously she has worked in the UAE in the field of Corporate Governance with Dubai Parks
and Resorts PJISC and Hawkamah, the Institute of Corporate Governance, based in Dubai
International Financial Centre. At Dubai Parks, Jahanara lead the process of the Company’s
participation in the 2016 Ethical board room Corporate Governance Awards, which Dubai Parks
won and helped position the Company as the market leader in terms of governance frameworks
and practices.

At Hawkamah, Jahanara provided consultancy to various GCC Companies, including State
Owned Companies and Islamic Banks, and assisted them in setting up their Corporate
Governance frameworks and practices in accordance with international best practice. She
developed the Middle East’s first Code of Corporate Governance for the Dubai Real Estate
Developers. Jahanara was driving Hawkamah's Task Forces on Corporate Governance of State
Owned Enterprises, Islamic Banks and Insolvency and Debtor Creditor Rights systems and
implementation of the policy recommendations culminating out of the work of the Task Forces
throughout the MENA region.

Prior 1o joiming Hawkamah, she was Dircctor Sccuritics Market Division at the Securitics and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan where she was responsible for regulating the primary capital
market of Pakistan, ensuring adequate disclosures in the prospectuses of companies proposing to
be listed on the Pakistan and the International Stock Exchanges, licensing of Special Purpose
Vehicles, monitoring the implementation of the Takeovers and Acquisition Law. Jahanara was

the Chairperson of the working group established for the Development of Debt Capital Market of
Pakistan and has represented the SECP at Board Mectings of the Privatization Commission.

10
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Jahanara has also worked with Morison Stoneham Chartered Accountants in London (now
known as the Tenon Group Plc). Jahanara is an IFC certified trainer on Corporate Governance
and has been invited to speak on Corporate Governance both regionally and internationally. She
is the Co-Author of the Chapter on “The Arab Spring emphasizes better corporate governance of
statc-owned enterprises”, published by the OECD.

Jahanara has also served on the Board of Linde Pakistan Ltd (now known as Pakistan Oxygzen
Ltd) as a Non-Executive Director (NIT Nominee Director) from January 2017 till the change of
control of the Company in January 2018,

Ms. Jahanara served as a member of the Pakistan Audit Oversight Board as well.

She is currently a Board member of Fauji Cement Company Ltd and Murree Brewery Company
Lid.

11
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Ch. Wagar A. Kahloon Mr. Mazhar Igbal

Company Secretary Chiel Financial Officer

Malik Saqib Gulnawaz

Head of Internal Audit

12
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MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
F-NATIONAL PARK ROAD RAWALPINDL PAKISTAN
NOTICE OF 154" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 154" Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) will be held at its Registered Oilice,
3-Mationa] Park Road, Rawalpindi on Friday, October 22, 2021 01 9:30 a.m. 1o transact the following busincss;

1. Toreceve, consider and adopt the avdiled linancial statements of the Company together wilh the Directors” and Auditor’s
Reports for the vear ended June 30, 2021 and Chairman’s Review Report.

T

To approve the pryment of final cash dividend of 100% i.c. Rs. V- per share of Rs. 10/~ each, as recommended by the
Board of Dircetors, This is in addition o the imterim dividends of 200% i.e. Rs, 20/~ per share alveady declared and paid to
the sharcholders, thus, making a total cash dividend ol 3000 e Rs. 30/ per share for the year ended June 30, 2021,

3. To appeint Auditors ol the Company and 1o fix their remuneration. The members arc hereby notified that the Audin &
Risk Management Committee and Board of Directors have recommended the appomntment of retiring Auwditors,
Mis KIPMG Tascer Hodi & Co, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company.

4. SPECIAL BUSINESS:
To consider and approve transmission of annual reports including annual audited financial staements, auditor’s report
and directors’ report, notices ol annual peneral meetings and other information contained therein of the Company 1o
members cither through CD or DVD or USB at their registered addresses in terms of SR.00 470000720160 dated
31 May 2016 ssucd by Securitics and Exchange Commussion of Pakistan and to pass the ollowing resolution a5 an
Ordinary Resolution, with or without modificalion:

“Resolved that consent & approval ol the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited (the “Company™) be and is hercby
accorded for mansmission of annual reports including annual audited accounts, notices of annual general meetings and other
informmation contained therein of the Company 1o the members for future vears commencing from the year ending on
30 June 2022 through C1Y or DVD or USB instead of ransmitting the same in hard copics,

Resolved further that Chicl Executive Oficer or Company Scerctary of the Company be and is hereby authorized 1o do all acts,
deeds and things, wke or couse to be tiken all necessary actions o implement to comply with all legal formalities and
requirernents and file necessary documents s may be necessary or ncidental for the purposes of implementing this resolution™,

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Rawalpindi :
wilping %%

Oherober 01, 2021
o Ch.Wagar A. Kahloon
NOTES: Company Secretary

CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOORKS

The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed and no irmnster of shares will be accepted for registration [rom
October 16, 2021 to October 22, 2021 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order ot “CDC Share Registrar Services
Limited, OO House, 99-B, Block 'B. SM.CILS. Main Shahrah-c-Faisal, Karachi™ ot the close of business (5 pom.) on
October 15, 2021 will be treated in time Tor the purpose of entitlement of cash dividend and w0 attend, speak and vole
al the ACeM.

RIGHT TO APPOINT PROXY

A member i entitled 10 appoint a proxy m his‘her place to attend and vole instead of hinher. The mstrument appoiniing a
proxy, duly stamped and signed, and the power ol attorney or other suthority (iF any) under which it s signed or 2 notarially
certificd copy of the power of attorney or authorty must be deposited at the Registered OfTice of the Company, 3-National
Park Road, Rawalpindi not later than 45 hours (excluding non-working days) before the time ol the mecting. A proxy must be
a memsher of the Company. Form of proxy in English and Urdu Language s enclosed herewith,

FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

i i cose of individuals, the account hidders or sub-account holders and/or the persons whose sceuriiics ane in group aecount
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations. shall authenticate their ientity by showing their original
Computerized National [dentity Card (CNIC) or original passport st the time of attending the meeting,

i, In case of corporte entitics, the Board of Dircetors” resolution/power of alorey with specimen signature ol the
nerenineees shall be produce | {unbess it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

13
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FOR APPOINTING PROXIES:

i A member may appoint any member of the Company (u/s 137 (d) of the Companies Act, 2007} as & proxy o attend and
volte on his / her behalll Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office of the Company duly
stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the meeting,

i, Incase of individuals, the sccount holders or sub-account holders andior the persons whose securilies are in group sceount
and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations, shall subimil the proxy [orm as per the above
reQUIrerenis,

i, The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned
on the form.

iv.e  Adtested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

v, The proxies shall produce their originad CNIC or original passport at the tme of meeting,

vi In case of corporate entities, the Board of Dircetors” resolution/power of aftorney with specimen signature of the person
nominzted W orepresent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless it has been provided carlier)
along with proxy form w the Company.

DEDUCTION OF RATES OF INCOME TAX FORACTIVE TAX PAYER AND NON-ACTIVE TAX PAYER:

Under the provisions of Section 150 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 rates of withholding income tax on dividend will he as
Tl lovas:

I Rate of tax deduction for sharcholders appearing in the Active Tax Payers list | 15%
2 Rate of tax deduction For sharcholders nolappearing in the Active Tax Pavers list | 30%,

In case of joint account, each holder s 10 be treated individually as eather active or non-active tax payer and tax will be
deducted on the basis of sharcholding of each joint holder as may be notilied by the sharcholder, in writing as follows, to our
Share Registrar, otherwise, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares.

Principal Sharcholder ' Joint Sharcholder
Folio / CDS Total Mame & b::al'rﬂ?: :i:::h | Mame & %::::le_:::dn;: G
scount Mo, WIC Mo, C i
Account Mo Shares CNIC Mo (No. of Shares) | CNIC No, (No. of Shares)
| —
|

The CNIC number / MTM detail is now mandatory and is reguired for checking the tax siatus as per the Active Taxpayens List
{ATLY ssued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FER) [mom time w time,

EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX ! ZAKAT:

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction ot a reduced rate, ane requested w
submii a valid @ax exemplion certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the cnse may be, Members desinng
nen=deduction of Zakat are also requested w submat o valid declaraten [or non-deduction of zakat,

CORONAVIRUS CONTINGENCY PLANNING FOR AGM:

In view of the instructions ol the Government © SECP an light of escalating number of Coronovirus Pandemic ¢oses, the
Company intends to convene thus AGM with mansmal physical mteraction ol sharcholders while ensuring compliance with the
quorum requirements and requests the members o conselidate ther attendance and voting at the AGM through proxies. The
meeting can be attended wsing smart phones/tablets’'computers. To attend the meeting through video link, the members and
their proxies are reguested o register themselves by providing the following information along with vald copy of ONIC
passport  with the  subject "Registranon for Murree Brewery Company . Limited  AGM™  through  email -
penernl.mectingsar murreehrewery com on or before 20™ Ogtober, 2021,

Name of CNIC No. CDC Account Cell Number Emuail Address
member Mo Folie No,

The members who are registered after the necessary venfication shall be provided o video link by the Company on the
same email address that they email with the Company with, The Login facility will remaim open from stan of the meeting
il it proceedinges are concluded.
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The sharcholders who wish Lo send their comments. suggestions on the agenda of the AGM can email the Company s
email; general. meetingsiamurrechrewery.com or WhatsApp at 0331-5580900, The Company shall ensure that comments/
suggestions of the sharcholders will he read out at the meeting and the responses will be made part of the minutes
of the meeting.

CHANGE OF ADDRESS:
Members are requested to promplly notify any change of address (o the Company’s Share Registrar “CDC Share Registrar
Serviees Limited, CT House, 99-H, Block "B, SMICTLS. Man Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi™,

AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY"S WEBSITE:

The audited finaneial statements of the Company Tor the year ended June 30, 2021 along with Directors” and Auditor’s Report,
Chairman’s Review Report, Notiee of AGM and other related materials have been made available on the Company™s website
www.murreehrewery eom, in addition to annual and quarterly nancial statements for the prior years.,

DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES IN TO CDC ACCOUNT

As per Seetion 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing company shall replace its physical shares with Book -entry form
in 2 manner as may be specified and trom the date notified by the Secuntics and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, within
period nol exceeding four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2007 e May 31, 2017, The sharcholders
holding shares in physical form are requested to please convert their shares in the book-entry form. For this purpose, the
sharcholders may open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or investor account directly with the CDC 1o place their
physical shares into serip-less form, This will facilitate them in many ways including safe custody and sale ol shares, anytime
they want as the trading of physical shares is not permitted as per existing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange limited.
It also reduces the risks and costs associnted with storing share ecrtificatels) and replacing lost or stolen certificaleds) as well
as fraudulent transfer of shares, For the procedure of conversion of physical shares into hook-entry form, you may approach
our Share Registrar at the contact information given above,

PAYMENT OF CASH MVIDEND THROUGH ELECTRONIC MODE

Section 242 of the Act requires that the listed companies shall pay cash dividend only through electronic maode directly into the
bank account desigrated by the sharcholders. SECP vide its notification S.RALTT4S (12017 has alse issued the Companies
i Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017 wherehy every sharcholder shall be responsible o provide valid information
pertaining Lo 11s designated bank account w disburse any dividend payable in cash only through electronic mode directly into
the bank aceount designated by the entithed sharcholders,

In this regard, the Company has already communicated through its letlers addressed 1o the sharcholders individually along
with newspapers publications requesting to provide the Intemational Bank Accounts Number (“IBAN) designated by the
shareholders w receive the eash dividends electronically, Henee, sharcholders are requested 1o fill the required fields of the
Companys Letter available on website of the Company: www.murrechrewery.com and send the same o the Share B
and Transter Agent of the Company. In ease of shares held as book-entry seeurities, the said information would be required Lo
e provided w Central Depository Systen (“CDET), through DS Pamticipants,

wslrr

CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL AUDITED ACCOUNTS AND NOTICE OF AGM ETC., THROUGH EMAIL

The sharcholders who desire to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Motice of AGM through email are requested
o Gl the reguisite form titled *Standard Reguest Form®placed on the website and send 11t the Company Secretary al the
Registered Office of the Company, In case any member, subsequently, requests for hard copy of Annual Financial Statements,
the same shall be provided free of cost within seven days of reeeipt of such reguest.

Statement under Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2007

This statement sel ot the mterial Tets concerning the special business o be transacted ot the annoad general mevting ol e
Company (o be held on 22 Owctober, 2021,

Circulations of Annual Reports through CDYDVINUSE

Securities and Exclunge Commission of Pakistan has vide S RO ATO0H2006 dated 317 May 2006 allowed the companies 1o
cireulate the annual reports including annual sudited accounts, notices of annl genersl mectings and other informiagon contined
therein of the Company o its members through CODVERUSE subject 1o consent of the shareholders n the pencral meeting. This
will save time and expenses ineurred on printing of e anneal repaort.

The Company shall supply the hard eopies of the aloresaid document o the sharcholders on demand, free ol cost, within one
wieek of such demand. Afler approval ol the sharcholders, the Company will place o Stondard Bequest Form om its websine 1o
communicnte their need of hed copres of the doviments along with postal and email address ol the Company Secretary/Share
Registrar 1o whom such reguests shall be made.

Avcordingly, the directors have placed the matter betore the sharcholders Sor therr approval and o pass the ordinary resolution
s proposed m e sotice of meeting. The direetors are no interested, directly or indireetly, in the abave busmess exeept b th
cxtent of their investrent as Te s been detsiled in the patters of shareholding annesed w the Directors” Beporn
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

[ feel pleasure in presenting the 154" annual report and audited financial statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2021. to our valued sharcholders.

The financial year 2021 has been a challenging year for Pakistan’s economy. The COVID-19
pandemic has been a source of constant stress and anxicty throughout the year. Pakistan's
economy, however, showed its resilience and was quick to get back to a positive erowth
mode. The Company took appropriate measures to combat challenges thrown up by the
pandemic, and to exploit the restoration of consumer demand for its products.

In exercising its responsibilitics, the Board continued to actively interact with the
management to identify risks to the business and to anticipate possible issues concerning
its performance. The Board was fully involved in the Company’s strategic planning
processes and it remained committed to ensuring high standards of Corporate Governance.
The Board’s collective performance is reflected in the Annual Report for the financial year
ended 30" June, 2021.

The Board has outsourced the Company’s internal audit function to M/s EY Ford Rhodes.
who arc suitably qualified for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company. Internal audit reports are presented to the Board’s Audit
Committee on a quarterly basis, and the Internal Control Processes as well as potential risks
to the Company are rcgularly reviewed.

As required under the Listed Companics (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019,
the Board carried out its self-evaluation, to ensure that the Board's overall performance and
cffectiveness is measured against the highest standards. During the process of evaluation the
performance of the Board’s sub-committees was also analyzed. The Company is fully
compliant with the training requirements of management and staff, as prescribed by the
Regulator.

The Board of Directors of the Company reecived the agenda and supporting written material,
including follow-up material, in sufficient time prior to the Board and its Committee
meetings. The Board meets frequently to effectively discharge its responsibilities. The non-
executive and independent directors are equally involved in all the proceedings and decisions.

On behalt of the Board, I would like to record the satisfactory performance of the
management and staff, in dealing with matters pertaining to finance, taxation and corporatc
compliance.

[ am pleased 1o state that during the year on record that the Directors performed their duties
with responsibility, and that the Company’s bottom line was healthy.

Ch. Mueen Afzal
Chairman

Rawalpindi September 17, 2021
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
For the year ended June 30, 2021

The Board of Dircctors takes pleasure in presenting the annual report on the performance
and progress of the Company together with the audited financial statements for the year ended

June 30, 2021,

BUSINESS REVIEW OF THE COMPANY

Murree Brewery has completed 161 years of continuous operations and is one of the oldest
companies quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX).

The company continues with its policies, to add value to sharcholders. to invest in its people and
processes and to improve the quality of its products.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

i.  Overall Financial Overview & Highlights

Sales revenue (Net) Increased by
Gross Profit Increased by
Profit before Taxation Incrcased by
Profit after Taxation Increased by
Earnings per sharc Increased by

29.9%

29.4%

60.7%

39.4%

89.4%

{rom

from

from

from

from

8,997

2,301

1,038

682

Rs. 24.64

Rs. in million

o

o

o

Lo

Lo

11.687

2977

1,668

1,291

Rs. 46,08

The profit after tax of the Company increased under challenging operating conditions (however,
it is pertinent to mention that last corresponding year was remained closed for few months due to
lock down imposed by the Govt. for Covid-19 pandemic) and it is duc to the leadership and

planning of CEQ and the dedication and work of all management staff and workers.
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ii.  Divisional Operating Results

The results of our divisions were:

a.  Liquor Division

Answal Ligper!t 2027

Murree Srewery Cmpany Limilod

2021 % 2020 %
Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxcs 9,049 6,847
Cost of sales (6,897) | (76.2) {5.126) {74.9)
Giross profit 2151 23.8 1,720 25.1
| Operating profit 1372 | 152 932 13.6 |
b.  Glass Division
i ' 2021 % 2020 | A
Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of applicable taxes 1,749 1,411 ]
Cost of sales (1.333) (76.2) (1,120) (79.4)
' Gross profit 415 237 290 20.6
Operating profit 378 216 65 4.6
i Glass Containers salcs | 32,161 | Metric Tuns_ 27 064 I Metric Tons
¢.  Tops Division
' | 2021 7 2020 %
| Rs. in million Rs. in million
Sales exclusive of'applicable taxes 2,977 2.549
‘Cost of sales (2.568) | (86.2) (2.258) (88.6)
Gross profit 409 | 137 29] 11.4
Operating (Loss) 66) | (2.4) (218) (8.6) |

IMPORTANT ISSUES:

.. Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC):
The honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan decided the matter of GIDC in favor of the
Government on 13" August, 2020. Subsequent to the decision, review petitions were filed
by the companies but the Supreme Court upheld its earlier decision. Company has already
provided for the GIDC expense in its financial statements on 30" June, 2020, which is now
being paid in installments as directed by the Supreme Court of Pakistan in two years time,
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ii. Tax on water consumption for commercial use:
The Supreme Court of Pakistan announced taxation of the beverage industry (@ Re. 1 per
liter of surface and underground water. The order issued effective from December 2018
apphies to all industries consuming water in Pakistan. The beverage industry has lodged a
review petition, which is pending in the Supreme Court.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors of the company has recommended a final cash dividend of Rs. 10 per
share for the year ended June 30, 2021 bringing the full year payout to Rs. 30 per share
(300% - previous year 250%). This shall be subject to the approval of Sharcholders at their
mecting scheduled on Qctober 22, 2021,

RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Company’s main risks in the short term are, the payment/demand of Late Payment
Surcharge (LPS) for rate differential of Sui Gas bills amounting to Rs. 130 million (approx.) and
Water Tax as per Supreme Court review 1f decided against the Company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The total number of Company’s sharcholders as at Junc 30, 2021 was 1,223 against 1,254 on
June 30, 2020, The pattern of sharcholding as on June 30, 2021 and its disclosure 1s annexed.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share for the year ended June 30, 2021 is Rs. 46.68 as against Rs. 24.64 of
preceding vear.

INTERNALAUDIT AND CONTROL

The internal audit function has been outsourced to M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants
a renowned firm and Head of Internal Audit has been appointed to coordinate with them who
reports to the Audit & Risk Management Committee.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Company conforms to the regulatory requirements on the composition and qualification of
the Board of Directors. The total number of directors is eight (08). Category wise composition of
the Board was:

a. Male L Six
b. Female : Two
Catezory Names
a) Independent Directors Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad
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b) Non-Executive Dircctors Ch. Mueen Afzal
Mr. Aamir H. Shirazi
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara

¢) Executive Director Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara
d) Female Directors Mrs, Goshi M, Bhandara

Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad
COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

i.  Audit & Risk Management Committee:

The Audit & Risk Management Committec performed its functions under the Code of
Corporate Governance and comprises of three independent directors and two other non-
executive directors. One of the independent directors is the chairman.

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha - (Chairman)
Ch. Muegen Afzal - {Member)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza . (Member)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - (Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad - (Member)

HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee:

The HR & Remuncration and Nomination Committee constituted under the Code of
Corporate Governance comprises of two independent directors, an exceutive dircetor and two
other non-executive directors. One of the independent directors is the chairman.

Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - {Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal - {Member)
Mr. Aamir H. Shirazi - {Member)
Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara - {Member)
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar - (Member)

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The Directors statc that:

a. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021 prepared by the management
of the Company fairly present its state of affairs, the result of operations, cash flows and
changes in equity.

b. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

c. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates arc based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

d. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan. have been
followed in the preparation of the financial statements.
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Leave of absence was granted to the members who could not attend meeting(s).

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

e. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented.

f. There arc no significant doubts about the company’s ability to continuc as a going
CONCCr.

g. There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, levies and charges outstanding as on
June 30, 2021, except as disclosed in the financial statements,

h. The directors who have to take training or seck exemption are within the prescribed
limits.

i. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governanee as
detailed in the listing regulations,

j- Koy operating and financial data of the last six years in summarized form are annexed.

k. The value of the audited Provident Fund and un-audited Pension Fund investment at
June 30, 2021 was Rs. 148.871 million (2020: Rs. 133.5 million) and Rs. 71.06 million
(2020: Rs. 62.8 million) respectively,

. During the year 2020-21, six (06) Board meetings, four (04) Audit & Risk Management
Committee meetings and four (04) HR & Remuneration and Nomination Committee
meetings were held.

Attendance of members of the Board and of its Committees are as under:
NAME OF DIRECTOR BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUDIT & RISK HR & REM[);'\H':RATI{)N
- MANALEMENT COMMITTEE AND NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Ch. Muecen Afial /' 4/4 4/4
Mr. Isphanyar M, Bhandara i3] 04 by invitation ) 4/4
Mr. Aamir H. Shirazi /6 - T 44
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara 66 04 =
" Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza 6/6 I a4 44
Mr. Shahbar Huider Agha 30 4/4 - -
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar i/t - 34
“Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad 36 _ 1/4 -
. I

The company has fully complicd with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, A statement to this effect 1s annexed with this report.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Murree Brewery Company is one of Pakistan’s oldest companies and it fully meets its obligation
as a social corporate citizen. The Company always takes constructive interest in social matters
which may not be directly related to the business and is giving donations to charitable
institutions, hospitals and trusts. During the year 2020-21, the Company has donated
Rs. 4.12 million to various welfare organizations,

The Company continues to make available the use of its property to Association for Special
Persons (DARAKHSHAN). Presently 74 disabled women are getting training in this vocational
school for helping destitute handicapped women to be self-reliant, computer literate and
contributing members of society. This property has been provided free of charge by the company
with furniture and fittings and the Company bears the cost of utilitics and maintenance.

The Company continues to operate and support a Social Security Dispensary on its premises.
This caters for workers and their familics.

The Company continues to give donations to institutions in accordance with its policies for
corporate philanthropy.,

ENVIRONMENT, QUALITY, HEALTH & SAFETY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The management is strongly committed to achicving sustainable Environmental & Quality
Management which has been recognized by the society and independent certification authorities.
The Company supports sustainable development and promotes greater environmental
responsibilitics and has achieved Certification of 1SO 9001:2015, 45001:2018. 14001:2015. The
Company continues to test the emissions and ctfluents through laboratories certified by Punjab
Environment Protection Agency. Murree Brewery's central lab has been accredited by Pakistan
MNational Accreditation Council (PNAC) on [50 17025:2017.

The Company ensures that every employee or contractor works under the salest possible
conditions. There 15 no child labour.

COVID-19 EFFECTS AND MEASURES

The Company continues to operate under the challenge of the COVID-19 Pandemic. Company
management 1s pleased to announce that it has been able to maintain strict SOPs for combating
the COVID-19 pandemic to keep the team and the workplace safe under these challenging
circumstances. Further, more than 80% employees of the Company have been vaccinated.

CONTRIBUTION TO NATIONAL EXCHEQUER

Your company contributed a sum of Rs. 4,285 million (previous year Rs. 4,958 million) to the
Government exchequer on account of duties and taxcs.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

As per the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance, there is a formal and transparent
procedure in place for fixing the remuneration packages of individual directors. No director 1s
involved in deciding his / her own remuneration.

The Board reviews the fee of the Executive. Non-Executive and Independent Dircctors for
attending the Board and different committees mectings, which arc subsequently presented to
sharcholders in the Annual General Meecting for approval. Remuneration to Chief Executive
Officer and Directors are disclosed in note# 42 to the financial statements for the year ended
Junc 30, 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Related Party
Transactions and Maintenance of Related Records) Regulations, 2018, the Board of Directors
has approved the related party transactions as per policy.

AUDITORS

Statutory Audit of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2021 has been concluded
and the Auditors have issucd their Audit Reports on the Company’s financial statements and
Review Report on the Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019, The Auditors M/s, KPMG Tascer Hadi & Co. shall retire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting, and being cligible have offered themselves for
re-appointment for the year 2021-22. The Board proposes their appointment as Auditors for
the financial year ending June 30, 2022 on the recommendation of the Audit and Risk
Management Committee. This shall be subject to the approval of the sharcholders at the Annual
General Mecting on October 22, 2021,

OUTLOOK

Despite a tough economic and operating environment, the management remains committed o
navigate the situation. We wish to continue our journcy towards prosperity by enhancing the
profitability of the Company in future.

APPRECIATION

We express our pleasure for the continued dedication and cfforts of the employees of the
Company. Our thanks are also extended to our customers, supplicrs, bankers, advisors and
sharcholders for their continuous support.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

B CJabars
Isphanyar M. BEhandara Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad
Chief Executive Officer Dirgctor

Rawalpindi September 17, 2021
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NET SALES vs PROFIT AFTER TAX COMPARISON
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Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2021

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab ] Total Shares Held
427 1 to 100 14,179
339 101 to 500 83,920
125 501 to 1000 93,506
167 1001 Lo 5000 398,246

&7 5001 to 10000 477,069
21 10001 to 15000 270,491
18 15001 1o 20000 314,194
13 20001 to 25000 289,051
3 25001 to 20000 84,508
3 30001 to 35000 93,120
3 35001 to 40000 112,582
1 40001 to 45000 45,000
3 45001 1o 50000 142,057
2 50001 to 55000 102,240
1 55001 Lo &0000 56,954
2 60001 to 65000 120,505
1 J0001 to 73000 72,606
1 BO001 to 25000 82,923
2 85001 1o S0000 177,598
1 25001 to 100000 100,000
1 105001 to 110000 106,600
1 145001 to 150000 146,884
1 155001 to 160000 156,487
1 200001 to 205000 202,000
1 215001 o 220000 215,320
1 265001 to 270000 265,200
1 300001 to 305000 304,080
1 315001 to 320000 319,441
1 420001 to 425000 420,232
1 455001 to 460000 457,040
1 465001 to 470000 469,503
1 500001 to 505000 300,008
1 555001 to 560000 555,560
1 605001 to 610000 609,100
1 635001 to 640000 637,990
1 675001 to 60000 678,516
1 720001 to 725000 720,815
1 75001 to BEOOOO 879,149
1 1000001 to 1005000 1,000,074
1 1700001 to 1705000 1,701,527
1 4030001 1o 4035000 4,030,810
1 4145001 o 4150000 4,146,240
1 6010001 to 6015000 6,010,325
1223 27 663,630
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Murree Srewery Company Limiled

Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2021

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children
MR, ISPHANYAR M., BHANDARS 2 4,603,280 1664
MRS, JASMINE BHANDARA 2 334,211 121
MRS, GOSHI M BHANDARA 1 1,000,074 3.62
ME. AAMIR HUSSAIN SHIRAZI 1 3,084 0.01
M5, JAHAMNARA SALIAD AHMAD 7 4 1,000 0.00
CH. MUEEN AFZAL 1 3,852 0.01
MRE. SHAHBEAZ HAIDER AGHA 1 2,178 0.01
PROF. KHALID AZIZ MIRZA 1 1,200 ﬂ._ﬂﬂ'
MR. PERVAIZ AKHTAR 1 1,000 0.00
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties 9 9,165,713 33.13
NIT & ICP 2 445 0.00
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institu 5 27,793 0.10
Insurance Companies 4 933,240 3.37
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 5 247 580 0.89

General Public

4. Local 1,116 2,738,711 5.50
b, Foreign 32 1,272,858 4,60
Foreign Companies 5 7,085,158 25.61
Others 34 242,209 0.88
Totals 1,223 27,663,630 100.00
Share holders helding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
MR. ISPHANYAR M. BHANDARA 4 603,280 1664
MWSS, DR, EDULIT & COMPANY (PWT) LINMITED 1,909,959 17.75%
KINGSWAY FUND-FROMNTIER CONSUBMER FRANCHISES 6,010,325 21.73
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Murree Frewery Corpany Linited

Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2021

Marne of shareboldes

Q&swmmmumwwm

Mismher of shsrey  Par

L OO BN ISPHANYAR B, IVARDARA, 4146280 340
L1 0P HAE R KR ISPHANYAR R, BHAMNDWRA A% F AHHI LR
1 AN BARL, BASRAINE IBHANDAI 11441 L1%
a DTG5 000 PRz, JASRINE ISHARDAITN 14,770 005
K HL123 Wt LONHI B HANDARA 1,000,074 1.kt
[ LEFRFR LFFFE] WAR, AARIE HLUSSAS SHIRAD LM [HY e
£ RN S, DA, SARIA LD AEERAALT 1.0 (e )
L] 11440 CH. MUELN &LSAL LESY oE
o 10517 BB, SHARTAT HAINCR AGHA PR L1
bl] CHHCH- 2 P41 FROF HHALID AZIE MIREA 1, 0
11 P Fa-140105% PR, PERYALL AKHTAR 000 0.00
11 T T AT 1.5
Aavosiabed companies, undensking el related g,
L AN D0, EDHJLN & COMAIANY {1 1| LEMSTE I AWIDKID 14857
? DS MRGOT Ch1=. EEMPLE & COINAIANY {PWT] LIMITT T W%, 145 1.1H
k] LA0e RA%. REUNIZTH BA. NHANDARA FRLHLS K1
a L1 BAh RAUNIZAH B BHANDARA B ML GO5HI M BHANDARA AN AL 1h
u ILEIIT RAR PANE ISPHANYAR ISHANDARN, ML DR 1M1
i E{O R RE AR LABETHE D RAIPEIE IHARIASIA, RAHY . DOSHI B DHANDARA & 3R, ISPHANYAH M HHANDANA 0N, O 11D
20LE2S FeTH. LARATHE L FRAIRCIT INHARIDARS, BES. GOSHI B BHANDARA & M. [SPHANYAS B HHANDARA 1,704,527 B.1%
H 01 U LU RAIL IARTSSETY A IVHAMITUAR A THEDUAGH SAARAGE HGUARIAN CAINHI K ISPHANYAR B, 300 2
q SRLDEA KR, SARIH L& HEHRAN 1 1.4H}
kJ WIES,TIT TN
LR
L THHIL Y M ENWTATRACNT CORPORATICN OF PAKISTAN CEL [ 4)
* HHI -5 IR {ICF LINIT) 1H oKl
2 AAK .00
L L Mo Dby, Fineregi) Elvg il 10y tulisms,
1 SHIA2 B ANK OF DAHAWALFUR LD, O ooy
& OTHNT-WINTH IMHACHA CARPITAL {FYT. | LIMITED 1AKHI o
L 4172777 BACR RANK LIMITED - TREASLNY 11.%41 (e
4 OHFGA 15RE5H CAPTTAL AN 1% L ALING CORFORATION LIBITED &G00 07
5 OFE190 1 T ATT HOLIHRCS (PITVATT | | T TE % 050 .0
. 27,70 010
Insurange Gy
L O3FTF 2iA4 EFU GEREHAL INSLIBANCT |IWSITIT 37,50 2ai
2 LAFaE-L ADARMICT LIFE ASSLRARNCE CORMPANY LTD-IRF 205, 00 .96
1 LAFAR-NT L ADAKAIEE LIFE ASSURANCE COMIMANY LISITE L-NLIL Tund FENEE] LR
a TITAR-GES ADARAIEE LIFE ASSUMANCE COLLTE - Dl s, ADD anz
= 4 w000, 740 137
Mcdarabas and BMutusl Funds
1 15T1-20 COHC - TRIFSTEE MCE PAKISTARN STOCK BMAHKE T 1 LIKD: EAFRVEH oy
2 DoARE 2 COC - THUSTEL PAKIS LAN CAFITAL FARKET FLINT T MM aaz
k] 06418-21 COE - THLATED AKD TNOEN TRACKER FUND 030 a0l
4 1126224 I - TRUSTET RACTE PAKIETAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUREDH 21,450 (Rl
B 1R COC - TRUSTET PAKISTAM PENSION FUND - ELAATY S | LIND 14,%4H1 L
B ] T 2a7ama [T
Gxnwral Public Fomsign
1EHE BAR, ARERAATE ATAUL HEHMAN NOOK AHRMAL RN moe
x WHIG SIRC.C GARBLTT 2484 nn
3 SO PR EHITAMHIG SALILT ALHA 17,154 008
4 SO0 RIS, R WL 17113 (ERLr]
% FEITH M D K ST A0,Er0 ih1e
] FEETY RAR L GEYT KEMAINGTON 5 T
T A0S AR, ML LLINES CHIIN TIANST N GATD 022
4 ] RAISS L ST, GECHGE ISHETT 2414 .04
£l 11 ML L B R, RAONS L5 il
=] plee ek} FAR I C BLIHAIDGL 24,HL2 LR
LE] IoO0En BRI ML KEADY FAAS 0o
2 IOO0s3 AR IO S TLRART 10T 1L ZH12 001
13 100030 R, K. A WAL LA 3,165 0.14
AL FRI= <EF RAIL EASHIRA A AAOHASARAD 5,072 A
L 13 12 RAISS LUCY CHARLES 1,391 4111
10 L2000s PR W' L. KIRELY Tl 1.0
L7 L0000 RS, B ML LALITLEY B2023 0,30
in pEL BAIL B & BATHGHAL 11,434 L]
R TADO14 FAR. PR LRDED0 N B LILLAK HARMES HAL H, by LEE]
& pLCE KN FARS. . SAWDAY 1410 1My
2 OO0 BARL P TE R XN SWAIRLEN aay 000
22 LHOOLE BN EICHAND ANTHENNIY 1, SC0TT 0.5l 003
FE] VHEELM KR FAEPH AOHN HARILTON POLLOCK 25H Lk}
#a FHOCRLE AR . P A CALTLEY T4k HHA anul
n 100041 BAR. SALEH MLUHAMBMAL HAT T AYLIE b 1A 0.zl
B 210000 N, LI CRANTREIN 17,722 00
i PRI BAIRS FLIREADGA, ©5500 AiA 1r.502 (RN 1Y
aH (RE BRR ] GREGORY ALEXANDLH GEHNTR Fan
8 03277 100ARG SYED ATICIIE BUHARI niy (%)
3 Q3277 106KLA MALIHAMIMIALY | 1AL 100 e ]
51 LEFFFRLTR BALIHARARAATE TSI nm [EEEH]
7 OGGRE-A2109 B HERANARNT A L]
EE] - 1,777,459 A,
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Murree Sorowery Company Limiled

Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2021

5N, Folio #
Foreign Comparkies

Number of shares  Per %

1 BT M5 HONGEONG BAMNEK INTER (TRUSTEE) LTD. 1810 0.0
2 H521-1335%h TENCORE 1l PARTHLRS LP AR, 000 i
3 (LT A P KIRGAWAY FURND-FRONTICE CONSUMER FRANCHISES 6010325 2173
4 (04y4F-10301 KIRGAWAY FUND-FRONTICR CONSUBMER FRANCHISES EXTORA 555,560 2.01
5 06951091 SCA NORINEFS {CI LIMITCD [1250-2] 465,503 1.7
5 7.085,1%8 25.61

Others
1 20041 W5 BLISINESS INVESTRIENTS LTD. a1 0.00
2 A0037 WS, H. L INWESTREENT'S [T LT EH] 0.00
3 140075 M5 M. H. SECURITIES [MT) LT, 14 Q.00
4 150019 WS, RAWALPINDI ELECTRIC POWER OO 1TD, 1GE .01
o 200006 WS, THE DEPUTY ADBINISTHATOH (AT DR, T, H. KHAN) 4,198 Q.02
[ 0191741 PRUDENTIAL SECURITIES LIMETED GAG L]
T 03210-28 ¥.5. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PWT] LTI A# Qa0
g 03277-6164 TRUSTEES KANDAWALLA TELIST LR o7
a9 03IZT7-13154 TRUSTEES HOMMIELIARMSHED MUSSERWANIEE T 5,550 00z
10 03277-61491 WS RANG COMMODITIES [PV LTI 9560 (V]
11 03277-85327 MOGLUL TORACCD COMEANY PV LID 5,000 0.2
12 03277-96529 FIKREE DEVELOPRENTS CORPORATION (PRIVATE] LMITCD G470 0.03
13 03293-12 5. H. BUKEHARI SECURITIES [PWVT) LINITED A54 0.00
14 03525-57191 SARFHAZ BAHMOOD [FANATE] LTD a 0.00
15 03525-63416 H B INVESTRIER TS [FWT) LIMITED 2870 .01
16 03525-63817 NH SECURITIES [FyT) LIMITED, 2 0.00
17 0393%-21 PEARL SECIPRITIES LINITED 2,300 001
18 0393962 PEARL SECIFRITIES LIMITED 1,55 0.0l
15 04953-28 SHERMAN SECURITIFS [PRIVATE) LIMITLD 31,000 0.0l
0 05736-15 WCC - PRE SETTLEMENT DFLAVERY ACCOUNT 652 .03
21 05453-04858 MESTLE PAKISTAM 1113, ERFL DYEES PROVIDENT FUND 100,000 0.36
2 OTAS0-1040 TRUSTEE-FIRST MAMCICHD 1NV, BANK LTD. & OTHCR CMPOLYEES P.FUND SG0 0.0%
23 OERAT-1447 Crescent Standand Business Management (Pet) Limited 1 0.00
24 12666-700 1581 Corparation [Private) Limited 2450 0.0
25 12666-1831 TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLELA SERDIR PROVIDENT FUND 800 0.02
i 12666-1840 TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLFUR MOMN EXECUTIVE STAFF PERSION FUND 11,750 0.04
7 12666-1856 TRUSTEE PAKISTAMN PETROLEUM MNOMN-EXECUTIVE STAFF GRATUITY FUKD 4,000 @0l
28 L2E60-1864 TRUSTEE PAKISTAN FETROLEUM JUNIOR PROVIDENT FUND 4,600 0.02
L] 12666-1872 TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLEUM FXECUTIVE STAFF PCNSION FUND 29,300 Q.18
o L 2666-1ERD TRUSTEE PAKISTAN PETROLEUS EXFCUTIVE STAFF GRATUITY FUND R ] Q.01
a1 12666-2045 TRUSTEE PAE, PETROILEUM EXFC. STARF PEN. FUND DC CONVERTIONAL 2750 Gl
2 1374980 TRUSTEE- GUL AHMED TEXTILE 8MILLS LT EMP. PROVIDENT FUND 4,00 (142
13 14341-22 FIKREES [PRIVATE) LINITED 1,760 00l
34 14746-21 KHADIM AL SHAH BUKHART SECURITIES [FRIVATE) LIMITCD 1 .00
T 242,209 038

Mo trade has been made in shares of the Cormparny by Directoss, Company Secretary, CFO and their spouses and miner children

dunng the year,

|
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Foreword

Murree Brewery Company Ltd ("MBC") has built a reputation for conducting its business with integrity, in
accordance with high standards of ethical behavior, and in compliance with the laws [regulations that
govern our business. This reputation is among our most valuable assets and ultimately depends upon
the individual actions of each of our employees all over the country.

The MBC code of conduct has been prepared to assist each of us in our efforts to not only maintain but
enhance this reputation. It provides guidance for business conduct in a number of areas and references
to more detailed corporate policies for further direction.

The code of conduct applies to all affiliates, employees and others who act on our behalf countrywide,
within all sectors, regions, areas and functions.

The adherence of all employees to high standards of integrity and ethical behavior is mandatory and
benefits all stakeholders viz our customers, our communities, our shareholders and ourselves

It carefully checks for compliance with the code by providing suitable information, prevention and
control tools and ensuring transparency in all transactions and behaviors by taking creative measures if
and as required.

33



crlnsal Heper!, 202 T

Murree Browery Company Limiled

General Principles

Compliance with the laws, regulations, statutory, ethical integrity and fairness, is a constant
commitment and duty of all MBC employees and its divisions.

MBC business and activities have to be carried out in a transparent, honest and fair way, in good faith,
and in full compliance. Any form of discrimination, corruption, forced or child labor is rejected.
Particular attention is paid to the acknowledgement and safeguarding of the dignity, freedom and
equality of human beings.

All MBC employees, without discrimination or exception whatsoever, respect the principles and
contents of the code in their actions and behaviors while performing their functions and according to
their responsibilities, because compliance with the code is fundamental for the quality of their working
and professional performance. Relationships among MBC employees, at all levels, must be characterized
by honesty, fairness, cooperation, loyalty and mutual respect.

The belief that one is acting in favor or to the advantage of MBC can never, in anyway, justify —not even
in part-any behavior that conflicts with the principles and content of the code.

The MBC Code of Conduct aims at guiding the “MBC Team “with respect to standards of conduct
expected in areas where improper activities could result in adverse consequences to the company, harm
its reputation or diminish it competitive advantage. Every member of the MBC is expected to adhere to,
and firmly inculcate in his/her everyday conduct; this mandatory framework; any contravention or
deviation will be regarded as misconduct and may attract disciplinary action in accordance with the
Company services and relevant laws,
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Murree Sorowery Company Limiled

Ethics, Transparency, Fairness, Professionalism

In conducting its business MBC is inspired by and compiles with the principles of loyalty, fairness,
transparency, and efficiency.

Any action, transaction and negotiation performed and generally, the conduct of MBC employees in the
performance of their duties is inspired by the highest principles of fairness, completeness and
transparency of information, clarity and truthfulness of all accounting documents in compliance with the
applicable laws in force and internal regulations.

Bribes, illegitimate favors, request for personal benefits of one or others. Either directly or through third
parties, is prohibited without any exception.

It is prohibited to pay or offer, directly or indirectly, money and material benefits and other advantages
of any kind to third parties, whether representatives of governments, public officers or private
employees, in order to influence or remunerate the actions of their office.

Accepting gifts or any other form of hospitality is not allowed as commercial courtesy, as it may
compromise the integrity and reputations of either party, and can be constructed by an impartial
observer as aimed at obtaining undue advantages. Only company give aways are acceptable.

Company Information

MBC ensures the correctness of company's information, by means of suitable procedures for in-house
management and communication to the outside.
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Conflict of Interest
MBC expects all employees to be free from actual or potential conflicts of interest.

A conflict of interest occurs whenever the prospect of direct or indirect personal gain may influence or
appear to influence your judgments or actions while conducting Company’s business.

Each member of MBC has a prime responsibility towards the Company and is expected to avoid
activities or transactions that clash directly with the interests of the Company. Such situations could
arise in a number of ways. Some of the specifically forbidden situations are outlined below. This list is
however, neither exhaustive nor all-inclusive.in case of doubt, the advice of the management or Chief
Executive should be sought.

Any member of the MBC or any dependent member having an interest in any organization supplying
goods or services to the Company.

Any member of the MBC participating in any external activity directly or indirectly that competes with
the Company in any manner.

Any member of the MBC having direct, indirect interest or family connection, with an external
organization that has business dealings with MBC, without fully disclosing to the management of the
Company details of such connections and interests.

Any member of MBC having any relative working with MBC and not disclosing details of the same to the
management of the Company.
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Murree Frawery Cempany Limiled

Confidentiality

A member of MBC shall not keep or make copies of correspondence documents, papers and records, list
of clients or customers without the prior approval.

A member of MBC shall not disclose or reveal any information on the behalf of the Company to
print/electronic media as well as any other information medium. All information shall be released
through/by the Marketing department or designated individual (s).

Agreement with Licenses, Distributors, Agents, Sales Representatives, Suppliers or Consultants

Agreements with above shall clearly specify the services to be performed for the Company, the amount
to be paid or receipts and all other relevant terms and conditions.

All payments or receipts and transactions shall be supported by documents.
Workplace Harassment

Every employee has the right to work in an environment that is free from harassment and in which
issues of harassment will be resolved without fear of reprisal. Harassment will not be permitted or
condoned within MBC whether it is based on a person'’s race, color, ethnic or national origin, age,
gender, real, or suspected sexual orientation, religion or perceived religious affiliation, disability, or
other personal characteristic.

MEBC demands that there shall be no harassment in personal working
relationships either inside or outside the Company. Such behaviors are strictly forbidden and are as
follows:

e Creation of an intimidating, hostile, isolating or in any case discriminatory environment for
individual employees or groups of employees

e Unjustified interference in the wol: performed by others

= Placing of obstacles in the way of the work prospects and expectations of others merely for
reasons of personal competitiveness or because of other employees

= Proposing private interpersonal relations despite the recipient’s explicit or reasonably clear
distaste
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Equal Opportunity Environment

MBC recognizes the value of striving for a balanced work force and is committed to the principles of
equal opportunity, equality of treatment, and creating a dynamic climate where diversity is valued as a
source of enrichment and opportunity,

All phases of the employment relationship —including, recruitment, hiring, training, promotion,
compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs, and leaves of absences-will be carried out by all managers
without regard to race, color, religion, gender, age, ethnic or national origin or disability.

Protection of Company Assets and Proprietary Information

Confidential information is any information that is not publically known and that has value to
MBC. It may be in written, electronic, or any other form.

It is duty of each member of the MBC to protect, use and operate all the corporate assets with utmost
care, due diligence and honesty. In case it is observed by any member of the MBC that the corporate
assets are being misused/ mishandled by some other members / individuals the matter should be
immediately reported to the Management of the Company. Corporate assets include moveable and
immaovable property of the Company.

Dealing in Securities/Shares & Insider Trading

MEC employees must not deal in MBC shares on the basis of privileged information.

MBC employee are forbidden to convey inside information at any time to other person or encourage another
person to deal in shares of MBC or any other Company on the basis of such information, even if the
employee does not profit directly from the arrangement.

MEBC employee should be aware of and comply with any local laws and regulations governing shares
dealings,in case any employee or his / her spouse deals in the Company’ s shares, he / her must notify
the Company Secretary with full particulars within two days from the date of the transaction.

END
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Murree Brewery Company
Limited for the year ended 30 June 2021 in accordance with the requirements
of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of
Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance
with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight
any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of
various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to
plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required
to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control
covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of
such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance procedures and
risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee,
and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of
Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are
only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to
believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the
Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the requirements
contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year
ended 30 June 2021.

WY N Grsati <
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Islamabad

Date: 28 September 2021
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

Murree Brewery Company Limited
For the Year ended June 30 2021

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the [ollowing manner:-
1. The total number of directors are cight (08) as per the following:

a) Malc g Six
h) Female : Two

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Names
a) Independent Directors Prol. Khalid Aziz Mirza
Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha
Mr. Pervaiz Akhtar
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

b) Non-Exccutive Directors Ch. Muecen Afal
Mr. Aamir H. Shirazi
Mrs, Goshit M. Bhandara

¢} Exccutive Director Mr. Isphanyar M. Bhandara

d) Foemale Directors Mrs, Goshi M, Bhandara
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
Iisted companies, including this company;

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures;

oL

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and sigmificant
policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating 1s maintained by the Company:

6. Allthe powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been

taken by the Board / sharcholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations;
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The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and. in his absence, by a director
cleeted by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of’ Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board:

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations:

The Company is fully compliant with the requirements of Directors’ Training Program under
these Regulations. None of the directors attended any Directors” Training during the year:

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit, including their remuncration and terms and conditions of employment and

complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations:

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval ol the Board:

The Board has Tormed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit and Risk Management Committee

Mr. Shahbaz Haider Agha - (Chairman)
Ch. Mueen Afzal - { Member)
Prof. Khalid Aziz Mirza - iMember)
Mrs. Goshi M. Bhandara - (Member)
Ms. Jahanara Sajjad Ahmad - {(Member)
b} HR & Remunceration and Nomination Committec
IProf’ Khalid Ay Mirza - {Chairman)
Ch. Mucen Ateal - {Memboer)
Mre. Aame H. Shiraz {Member)
Mr. Isphanvar M. Bhandara - { Member)
Mr. Pervaly Akhtar - {Member)

he terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed. documented and
advised to the committee for compliance:

The frequency of meetings (quarterly / hall yearly / yearlv) of the committee during the year
2020-21. were as per following:

Four (04) Audit and Risk Management Committee and four (04) HR & Remuncration and
Nomination Comnutiee.
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15. The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s EY Ford Rhodes, who are considered
suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company;

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satistactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of cthics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the
audit arc not a close relative (spousc, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
Chiel Executive Officer, Chiel Financial Officer. Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or
director of the Company;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this

regard;

18. We confirm that all the requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8. 27, 32. 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

a

M—* dahama-,-

ISPHANYAR M. BHANDARA JAHANARA SAJIAD AHMAD
Chief Exceutive Officer Director

Rawalpindi September 17, 2021
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Murree Browery Company Liniled

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members of Murree Brewery Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Murree Brewery Company
Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30
June 2021, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and
belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30
June 2021 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)
as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the
Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Following is the key audit matter:

S.

No.

1

ukey audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

R_ecognition of Revenue:

Refer notes 4.15and 31 to the
financial statements.

The Company is engaged in the
production and sale of food and
beverages.

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rs. 11,687 million for
the year ended 30 June 2021.

We identified recognition of
revenue as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the

| Company and gives rise to an
| inherent risk that revenue could

be subject to misstatementto
meet expectations or targets.

Qur audit procedures to assess the
recognition ofrevenue, amongst others,
included the following:

O obtaining an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the designand
implementation of key internal controls
over recording of revenue;

O comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents;

O comparing a sample of revenue
transactions recorded before and after
the year end with the sales orders,
sales invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related
revenue was recorded in the

-appropriate accounting period;

0 comparing the details of journal entries
posted to revenue accounts during the
year, which met certain specific risk-
based criteria, with the relevant
underlying documentation.

' [0 Consider the appropriateness of

accounting policy for revenue
recognition and comparing with the
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Murree Srewery Company Limiled

S. Key audit matter ' How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit

applicable accounting and reporting
standards; and

Assessing the adequacy of disclosures
related to revenue as required under
applicable accounting and reporting

~ standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. Other information comprises the
information included in the annual report for the year ended 30 June 2021, but does
not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a wtiole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

45



eofgsseal” Keperl 202 1

Murree Brewery Cempany Limiled

error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I1SAs as a pplicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control.

=  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for thepurpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

=  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors' report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of
cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980), was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund
established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Inam Ullah Kakra.

WT‘W ey

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Isiamabad

Date: 28 September 2021
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Marree Frowery Company Limiled

Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 20240
Nate (R, i) (K 001y

TURNOVER = Met : 31 11,687,289 B0, 0
COST OF SALES 32 (5.710,319) [h 095,444 )
GROSS PROFIT 2970,970 2301465
Selling and distribution expenses 33 (9P, 207) (B0 0014
Administrative expenses 34 (469,581) {507, 140y
Other expenses 35 (234, 158) {273.018)
Other income 36 81,233 LA 4510
Reversal off{impairment loss) on trade debts 26.1 5013 {3.117)
OPERATING PROFIT LA45.2T0 TIT.526
Finamee cosl 37 (29.512) {25, ()
Finaumwee income kh 252,101 RS0
NET FINANCE INCOME 232589 220,346
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 16T 5 137,972
Income tax expense 19 {3763I8T) (156,244
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,291,472 P

2021 2020
Earnings per shuare - basic and diluted {Rupees) 40 dh.68 2464

The ansexed nodes | o 51 form an integral pant of these financial statements,

AL y - e

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Murree Browery Company Limiled

Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 20
Mate [ R, "0 [ B, D0}

Profit for the vear 1,291,472 HE], TN
Other comprehensive income
Trems that will not bt reclussifiod o profit or less

Remuasurement on defined benefit plan Bability - wratuty 1213 (38.025) 17403

REemessurement on defined benelin plan asset - pension 12.2.6 o198 (19871}

Surplis on revaluation of property, plang and cquipmentBOU assees 1145970 154,429

L117.04% 151961

Related tax (196,467) 144 6%
Ciher comprehensive income tor the year - net of tax 920,682 MO ]
Total comprehensive income Tor the year 2.212.154 THEGNH2]

The annexed notes 1o 51 o an intepral pert of these Gnancial statements
Eral

CA N T S~ et

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Maurree Browery Gompany Liniled

Statem

For the year ended 30 June 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIV

Es
Profin belore Lax

Adjustments Tor:
Emplivee benedils - charee eprodit or loss
Depreciation
Amartiztion
Provisaow{reversaly for shv moving mveniones
Prowizion for WPFPF
Prowvimaom for WWwE
Prowision fir s Inlrastrocture Development Cess
Prowingom for Cias Tan T I Nerential
Prowisson For Whiter Tax
Coanm om rerneasurement of mvestment propeniy te Ger vidue
Caanin o dispoeal of properoy. plant amd eouipaseit
Aanortisateon ol deferrod grant
| Reversal W provision lor Expecied Credin Loss
Finanwe cost
Retum on deposin sceouns
Interest om MiHs
Trdergsd aon adwances
Dividenal oo
Linrenlined pam on re-measuremend of shon ferm invesimenis

Orperating profit before warking capital changes

i femmgres o
Inwemtorics
el dbebis
Audvanees, prepayments and other recenvables
Irade aml vther pavables

Comtract Tabilitic

Cinsly generated froam aperating activilies

Finance cosi paisd
Erngrosee benelis paml
WPTPF paicl
Imeone Laxes paad

Ml sy senerated Trom uperaling aclivities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Puschase of peopenty, plant wnd cguapoen
Prisceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
|..l1||5.' term sl vimees, pand
Ling derm deposits paid
Reuligation of Jong wenm mvestments
Actusation of iImvesiments - nel
Return oo deposis reeeived
Phvadenids receved

Mol cash wsedd in investing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Favmsenl agamst Jease habaliles
Limg tern lan recerved durning the year
Kepaymmen! ol kkn
Divviddernd pad

Mot cnsh msedl in Ninancing activities

Mot increased{decrease) in cash and cosh eqquivalents
Cahy il cash cyuivalents al beginming of e vear

sl amel cash cquivalents al end of the vear

ent of Cash Flow

Nale

TELL2 & 12124
1703
191
34
L

h.1
a7
R
L]
IR
k]
IR

131 % 112
142
20

LLL]
11
11

41

Thi: arnexed nides |t 31 S anoantepral o of these finaneiad staterments,

AN

CHEIEF FINAMUTAL OFFICER

st~

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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Marreo Frewery Company Liniled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 30 June 2021

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Murree Browery Company Limsted ("the Company™) was incorporated under the repealed Indian Companies Act (now the
Companies Act, 2007y in February 1861 ax 2 public lmited company in Pakistan, The shares of the Company are quoted on

Fakistan Stock Exchange Limited,

The Company is prncipally engaged m the manutactuning of aleoholic beer, Pakistan Made Foretgn Liguor {PMFL), non-
aleaholic beer, acrated winer (non-alcobolic products), juices and food products, mineral water, ghass bottles and jars, The

Company 15 presently operating three divisiens namely Liguor, Tops and Cilass to carmy out its principal activities,

The registergd office of the Company s situated of National Park Rosd in Rowalpandi, Pakistan, The addresses of the
Company™s corporate olTice, manulacturing Geilites and warehouses owned by the Company located in Rowalpindi, Hattar,
Luahore and Gujranwala are disclosed in note 17,15, The addresses of the Company™s other sales offices £ warchouses are as

follows;

- Klhusra Noe 413, 414, 415, Khatoont Mo 365, 566, 567, Khewat Mo 295, 296, 297, Mauza Jalian Bhat Khan, GT Road,
Tehsl Crujar Khan & District Rawalpingi;
Rarti Gali, Ayuban Road, Murree,

- Mamsoor Abad, near Sant Sing railway pate, Jumm Road, Faisalabasd:

- 16/H, near Winter Tome, Sl Induwstries Estate, Sahiwal;

- 2R-H, small Industrod Eseate, Main Labere Road, Sargodh

Management of the Company has evaluated the impact of COVID-19 on these financid statements for the year ended 30 Tune
2021 wnd concluded that there were neither any implications of COVID- 19 on the current operations of the Company, nor any
adverse implications are expected in the long term, Further, COVID-TY has no material impact on the presented amounis and
diselosures in these finaneial statements,

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have heen prepared i sceondance with the sccounting and repoming standards as applicable in
Pakistan, The accounting amd reporting standands applicable in Pakistan comprse of)

Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards), issecd by the Tnteroational Accounting Stomdards Boand
(EASE) as nobtied under the Compamies Aet, 20070 and

Provvasions of amd dircctves ssued under the Companies Act, 2007,

Where prowvisions of and directves sssued under the Companies Act, 20T deffer from the IFRS Standands, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2007 have been followed

Details of the Company™s sccounting policies are tncludsd i note 4,
Hasis of measurement

These financial statements have heen prepared wnder histoncal cost convention except for the following iems, which e
mcasured on an alternative hasis on each reporting date,

Iem | Measurement hasis

Land, building, plant,  machinery  and | Revalustion meodel

eyuipment |

Investment property | Faur value model

Investments hebd for trading | Faar value through profit or loss e

Employes benefits | Present value of the defined benefit frability, determined through sctuanal

| valuation, fess fir vadue of plan assets

The methods wsaed o nveasere Rir values are disclosed in the respective policy notes,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Functional and presentation currency

These Ninaneial stutements are presented in Pakistan Rupees {Rupee or PRR), which 1s the Company s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated,

Use of judzments and estimates

[n preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments and estimates that allect the
application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses.

The cstimates and associated assumptions are bused on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
Judgments about the carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimales,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting
cstimates are recognized prospectively.

Judgments, assumptions and estimates made in applying accounting policics that have the effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements are as Tollows:

Judzements, assumptions and cstimates Note Numbers
Useful hves, residual values and depreciation | Mote 4.1 and 17
method of property, plant and equipment
Useful lives and depreciation method of right of | Note 4 and 18
use asset; and lease lerm and discount rate used
to calculate lease liahility |
Uselul lives, residual values and amoriization | Note 4.2 and 19
method of intangible asset
Fair value of investment property Mote 4.3 and 21
Provision for slow moving inventories MNote 4.4 and 25
Recognition and measurement ol provisions and | Note 4.11
contingencies:  key  assumptions  about  the
likeihood and magnitude of an outflow of
resOuUrces;
Measurement of defined benefit obligations: key | Mote 4,13 3 and 12
actuarial assumptions -
Recognition of deferred tax liabilitics and assets | Note 414 and 13
and estimation of Income tax provisions o PR |
Measurement of ECL allowance for trade debts | Note 4.6 and 26
Impairment loss of non-lnancial assets other | Note 4.9
than inventorics

Charge in respect of WPPFE has been recognized based on industrial profit attributable o the production
an sale of food and beverages,

Fair value measurement

*Fair value” is the price that would be received o sell an asset or pad to transter a Hability i an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the
most advantnoeoy s market 1o which the Company has access at that date. The Tair value of a habiliy
rellects s pon-performance risk,
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A number of the Company’s sceounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities,

When one is available, the Company measurcs the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price
in an active market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if ransactions for the asset or
liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing
bhasis.

It there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Company uses valuation technigues that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimixze the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation techmque incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into
account in pricing a transaction.

The best evidence ol the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the
transuction price e the fair value of the consideration given or received, If the Company
determines that the air value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair value
is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical assct or liability nor based
on o valuation technigue for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be insignificant in relation
to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer
the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price. Subscquently.
that difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the file of the instrument but
no later thun when the valuation is whaolly supported by observable market data or the transaction 1s
closed out.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair
value, for both linancial and non-financial assets and labilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values.
Muanagement has overall responsibility for oversecing all significant fair value measurements,
including Level 2 fair values,

Management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Il third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the
management assesses the evidence obtained [rom the third parties to support the conclusion that these
valuations meet the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified,

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy basced on the
inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows,

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (1.¢. as prices) or indireetly (ie. derived from prices).

Level 3: imputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data {unobservable
inputs).

[l the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety i the same level of the
Fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement,

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hicrarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has oceurred.
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Standards, interpretations and amendments to the approved accounting standards

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companics Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or aller 01 July 2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended 1FRS 9, 1AS 39, [FRS 7. IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after | January 2021, with earlier
application permitted. The amendments introduce a pracuical expedient to account for modifications
of financial assets or finuncial labilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on
an _economically cquivalent  basis. In thesocases, changes will be accounted for by updating the
effective intercst rate, A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 [or lessees when
accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow a series of
cxemptions from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships dircetly
affeeted by the mterest rate benchmark reforms, The amendments apply retrospectively with carlier
application permitied. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes
resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met.

Amendment o IFRS 16 the Intermational Aceounting Standards Board (the Board) has issued
amendments o IFRS 16 (the amendments) 1o provide practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent
concessions. The amendments are elfective for periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with carlier
application permitted. Under the standard’s previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent
concessions are lease modifications and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease
modifications. This generally involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments
and a revised discount rate, In light of the effects of the COVIR-19 pandemic, and the fact that many
lessees are applying the standard for the first time in their financial statements, the Baoard has provided
an optional practical expedient for lessees, Under the practical expedient, lessees are not requircd to
assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account
for them as 1 they were not lease modifications,

The practical expedient introduced in the 2020 amendments only applicd to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments affected puyments originally due on or belore 30 June 2020, In
light of persistence of economic challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the board has
extended the practical expedient for COVID-19 related rent concessions by one year ie. permitting
lessces Lo apply 1l to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments origmally due on or before 30 June 2022,

Rent concessions are cligible for the practical expedient il they oecur as a dircet consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and it all the following criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration Tor the lease that is substantally the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;

- any reduction in lease paymenis affects only payments origimally due on or before 30 June 2022; and
- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease,

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract {Amendments to [AS 37) effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after | January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which
clarifics what comprises the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevanl when
determining whether a contract is onerous, An entity is required tw apply the amendments (o contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the begmning of the annual reporting period in
which it first applics the amendments (the date of nitial apphication). Restatement ol comparative
information is not reguired, inslead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative
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effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
camings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

= Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments (o [AS [6) effective for
annual periods beginning on or after | January 2022 clarifics that sales proceeds and costs of items
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and cquipment to the location and condition
neeessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by munagement e.g. when testing
ete., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures the
cost of those ilems applying the measurement reguirements of IAS 2, The standard also removes the
requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those
amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment thal are brought to the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
manggement on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applics the amendments, The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of
mitially applying the amendments as an adjustment o the opening balance of retained earnings (or
ather component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

= Annual Improvements o IFRS standards 2018-2020:

The Followsnyg annual improvements w IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022,

= IFRS 9 The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the
lender on the other! (s behalf, when it applieshe 10 percent west in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9
in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 6 — The amendment partially amends Hlusteative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leaschold improvements by the lessor. The
objective of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise i lense
meenlives.

- IAS 41 The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of TAS 41 for entities 1o
exclude taxation cash Mows when measuring the [air value of a biological asset using a present
valug lechnigue.

s Reference 1o the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceprual
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs
21AL 2B, 21C and 23A 10 IFRS 3. An entity shall apply those amendments to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022, Earlier application is permitted i€ m the same time or carlier an
entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards, issucd in March 2018,

+  Classification of labilitics as current or non-corrent {Amendments o TAS 1) amendments apply
retrospectively lor the annual periods beginning on or after | January 2023, These amendments in the
standards have been added to further clarity when a liahility is classificd as current. The standard also
amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the
entityl (s rght at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability for at least twelve
months altier the reporting period. An entity shallapply  those  amendments retrospectively in
accordance with 1AS K.

= Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to TAS | and IFRS Practice Statement 21— the Board
has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and 1o

help companies provide useful sceounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to 1A% 1 include:
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- requiring companics to disclose their material accounting policies rather than ther significant
accounting policies;

- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed: and

- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to a company s linancial statements,

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures, The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2023 with carlier
application permitted.

Dicfinition of Accounting Lstimates (Amendments to 1AS 8) — The amendments introduce a new
defintion for accounting estimates clarifying that they arc monetary amounts in the linangial
statements that are subject 0 measurement uncertainty.

The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimales
b specifving that a company develops an accounting cstimate o achieve the objective set out by an
acecounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after | January 2023
and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies
veeurring on or afier the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies
the amendments,

Detierred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising [rom a Smgle Transaction (Amendments 1o [AS
12} — The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not
apply o transactions that give rise to equal and offseiting temporary differences. As o resull,
companics will need o recogmise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax hahility for temporary
difTerences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and
decommissioning linhilities, the associated deferred tax asset and Habilities will need to be recognised
lrom the bheginning of the carlicst comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment 1o retained camings or other compoenents of equity at that date. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 wath
carlier application permotted,

Sale or Comrbuetion of Assets between an Investor and 1s Associate or Joint Venture {Amendments
to IFRS 10 and TAS 28) — The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of business
or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less [requent transactions that involves
neither cost nor {ull step-up of certain retained interests in assels that are not businesses. The effective
date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion of & broader review.

The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company | (s financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policics as sel out below have been applicd consistently o all periods presented in
these financial statements:

Accounting Policy
Property, plant and equipment and advances Tor capital expenditures

Recoonition and measurement
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ltems ol property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses except for:

= Landsarc stated at revalued figures,

= Buildingsare stated at revalued amounts less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if
any,
Plant, machinery and equipment is stated at revalued amounts less accumulited depreciation and
impairment losses, if any,

- Capatal work in progress and advance for capital expenditure is carried at cost less impairment
loss, ifany,

ltems in property, plant and equipment are recounized at revalued amounts based on valuation by
external independent valuer. Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment 15 credited 1o a
capital reserve in sharcholders! | equity and presented as a separate line item in statement of financial
position,

Increases in the carrying amounts arisimg on revaluation of land, buildings, plant machmery and
cquipmentare recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
surplus in sharcholders’ equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognieed
in profit or loss, the increase is first recogn ised in profit or loss,

Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same assct are first recognised in other
comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable 10 the asset: all other
decreases are charged to profit or loss,

The cost of self-<consiructed assets ineludes the cost of materials and direet labor, any other costs
directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use.

The completed or / acquired capital work in progress and advance for capital expenditure s
transferred (o the respective item of operating fixed assets when it becomes available for intended use,

IF significant parts of an item of property. plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
theyare accounted for as separate tlems (major components) of property. plant and eguipment.

Gain or loss on disposal of an item ol property, plant and cquipment is determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and is recognised
i profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure s capitalized only if it is probable that the future cconomic benelits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation is caleulated to write ofT the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values wsing the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and
isrecognised in profit or loss. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the leased term and
their useful lives unless 1t is reasonably certain that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of
the lease term.Land and capital work in progress arc not depreciated. Rates of depreciation/estimated
useful lives are mentioned in note 17,1 1o these financial statements,

Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset

charged to the stalement of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax,
is reclassified from revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit.
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Depreciation on additions to property, plant and equipment is charged on prorata basis from the date

on which the item of property, plant and equipment is acquired or capitalized while no depreciation is
charged from the date on which property, plant and equipment is disposed off/ derecognized,

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at cach reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Intangible asset
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that have finite uscful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied
in the specific assct to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

Amortization

Amortisation is caleulated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residualvalues
using the straight-ling method over their estimated uscful lives, and is gencrally recognisedin profit or
loss based on the amortization rates as disclosed in note 19,1 to these financial statements,

Amortisation methods, uselul lives and residual values are reviewed ai each reporting dale and
adjusted if appropriate,

Investment property

Investment property is initially measured at cost and subsequently at fair wvalue with any
changetherein recognised in profit or loss.

Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between the net
procecds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) 1s recogmised in profit or loss,

When investment property that was previously classified as property, plant and equipment is sold. any
related amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained carnings.

Inventories
Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at weighted average cost and net realizable value except
for ftems in transit which are stated al cost incurred up o the statement of financial position date less
imparrment, if any, Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other costs incurred mn bringing the items
to their present location and condition, For items which are slow moving and / o identified as surplus
to the Company's requirements, adequate provision is made for any excess book value over estimated
net realizable value. The Company reviews the carrying amount of stores. spare parts and loose tools
on a regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence, if there is any change in usage pattern or
physical form of related stores, spare parts and loose tools,

Stock in trade

These ave valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined as follows:
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- Raw materials are valued al weighted average cost;

- Goods in transit are valued at incurred cost, which includes invoice value and other charges
incurred thereon;

- Cost of finished goods, based on weighted average method, includes direct cost of production and
appropriate portion of production overheads based on normal capacity; and

- Work in process including stocks under maturation are valued at lower of cost and net realizable
value,

- Stocks under maturation and work in process are valued at manufacturing cost which represents
direet material, labour and an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal
operaling capacity.

Cost comprises of cost of purchase and other cosis incurred in bringing the items to their present
location and condition. Met realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less costs necessarily to be incurred in order to make a sale.

Financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes linancial assets on the date when they are originated. Financial
liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument,

Financial asset
Classification

O initial recognition, a financial asset is classilied us measured at:

- amortized cost;
- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT): or
- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL),

The classification of financial assets is based on the business model i which a linancial asset is
managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

Amortized cost

A financial assel is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL: (1) 1t s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to
collect contractual cash flows; and (i1) s contraciual lerms give rise on speeified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FYOCT)

A debt investment is measured at FVOCT il it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVWTPL: (1) it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and (i1} its contractual terms give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the pringipal amount
aulstanding.

Fair value throuszh profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCT as deseribed above are
measured at FVTPL.

Subsequent measurement
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Financial assets at amortised cost  Measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses,
Interest income, foreizn exchange pains and losses and
impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss
on de-recognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest
income  calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange pgains and losses and impairment are
recognized in profit or loss. Other net gaims and losses are
recognized in OCL On de-recognition, gains and losscs
accumulated in OCT are reclassified to profit or loss,

Financial assets at FYTPL Measured at fair value, Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss,

Equity investment at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured al fair value,
Dividends are recognized as meome in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the ¢ost
of the investment. Other net ains and losses are recognized
in OC1 and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

De-recognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
assct cxpire, or 1t transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewands of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it
neither transfers not retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain
control over the transferred asset. Any interest in such derecognized financial assets that is created or
retained by the Company is recognized as a separate assct or liability,

Financial liabilitics

Financial liabililies are classified as measured at amortized cost or FWTPL, A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-rading. it is a derivative or it is designated as such
on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losscs, including any interest expensc, are recognized in profit or loss, Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign cxchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss, Any can or loss on
de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire, Any gain / (loss) on the recognition and de-recognition of the financial assets and
liabilities is included in the statement of profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offsct, and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial pesition when, and only when. the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the assct and settle the
hability simultaneously.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially stated at fair value ol consideration to be roceived.
Subseguent to initial recognition these are carried at their amortized cost as reduced by appropnate
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charge for expected credit losses. if any, The Company holds the trade debis with the objective of
collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore measures the trade debts subsequently at amortized
cost using the cffcetive interest method. Irmpairment of trade debts and other receivables is described
i note 4,10

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially carried at the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future
For goods and services received. Subscquent to initial recognition, these are carried at amortized cost,

Dividend

Dividend distribution 1o the Company's members 15 recognized as a liability in the period in which the
dividends are approved.

Impairment
Financial asscts

The Company recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Losses (FCLs) on financial asscts
measured at amortized cost, other than those due from the Government of Pakistan entitics. For trade
receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in caleulating ECLs. Therefore, the Company
does not track chunges in eredit risk, but instead recognizes o loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking faclors specific to the debtors and the cconomic
SnVIronment.

Lifetime LCLs are those that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual peried over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Al gach reporting date, the Company assesses whether the financial assets carried at amortized cost
are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company
has ne reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entircty or a portion thereof. For
recognition of impairment on financial assets due from the Government of Pakistan entities, the
Company continues to apply the accounting policy as stated below,

Mon-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company's assels are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment loss. If any such indication exists, recoverable amount
i estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, iFany, The recoverable amount of
an assel or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted o their present value using a
pre-lax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In the absence of any information about the fuir value of a cash-generating unit,
the recoverable amount is deemed 1o be the value in use, For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use
that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other asscts or groups of assets (the “cash-
gencrating wnit™),

64



4.10

4.12

4.13.3

ornnual Repert. 202 T

Marss Ty Goany B

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 30 June 2021

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statement of profit or
loss. Impairment losses in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to the carrying amounts of
assets in the cash-generating unit group on pro-rata basis, An impairment loss is reversed only 1o the
extent that the asset carmying amount docs not exceed the camying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, 11 no imparment loss had been recognized.

Provisions

A provision 1s recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation, Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows al a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of time value of money and risk specific to the
liability. The unwinding of discount is recognised as finanee cost,

Contingent liabilitics

A contingent hability 15 disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past
events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence, of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company: or the Compuny has a present
legal or constructive obligation that arises from past events, but it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability,

Share capital anddividends

Ordinary shares are classified as eguity and recognised at their face value, Dividend distribution to the
shareholders is recognised as liability in the period in which it is declared.

Emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to
piy this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be
estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plan — provident fund

The Company operates a defined contribution provident fund scheme for permanent employes,
Contributions to the fund are made monthly by the Company and employees at the rate of 12% of the
basic salary.The fund is managed by its Board of Trustees. The Company! s contribution to the
provident fund 15 expensed as the related service 15 provided,

Defined benefit plans

The Company aperates the following defined benefit plans:

Gratuity and pension plans

The Company operates defined benefit plans comprising a funded pension and an unfunded gratuity

scheme covering all eligible employees completing the mimimum. qualilying period of service as
speciled by the scheme,
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The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for cach plan
by estimating the amount of future benefit that emplovees have carmed in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The caleulution of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the
projected unit eredit method, When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the
recognised assct is limited to the present value of economic bencfits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To caleulate the present
value of ¢cconomic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any. excluding interest),
are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interes
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability / (asset) for the peried by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annwal period to the then -
net defined benefit liability / (assct), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability / {asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed. the resulting change in benefit
that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or
loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlemeni of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs. The pension fund is managed by trustees of the fund who are responsible for the
establishment and oversight of the Funds risk management framewaork.

Compensated leave absences

The Company recognises provision for compensated absences on an undiscounted hasis and are
expensed as the related services are provided, A Hability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid under compensated absences if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated
reliably. The compensated absences are payable to employees as per the Company s policy. The
provision is determined on the basis of last drawn salary and accumulated leaves balance at the
reporting date. Actuarial valuation has not been carried out as the impact of present valuation is
considered immaterial in the context of overall financial statements.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax, It is recognised inprofit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in OCI,

Current tax

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year at the applicable tax rates after taking
into account tax credit and tax rebates, if any and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
YT,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, Deferred

tax is not recognised for;

" temporary differences on initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;
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- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

* taxable temporary differences arising on the mitial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax eredits and deductible temporary
differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for the Company and the
reversal of temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are reviewsd al each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized: such
reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at cach reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

Dieferred tax 15 measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date, The measurement
of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manncr in which the
Company expects, at the reporting date, 1o recover or settle the carrying amount of its asscts and
liabilities,

For this purpose. the carmying amount of investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be
recovered through sale, and the Company has not rebutted this assumption, Deferred tax assets and

liahilities are offset if cortain erteria are met.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Nature and timing of satisfaction of Revenue rcmgn_iﬁuu
performance obligations, including

significant payment terms

"Customers obtain control of alcoholic
heverages when the goods are dispatched
from the Company! |5 warchouse, Invoices
are penerated and revenue is recognised

at that point in time. Advance payment is
received and there is no financing
component, No discounts or returns ane
offered for aleoholic beverages.

Revenue is recognized when
the goods are dispatched from
the Company| |s warchouse,

Liquor - Alcoholic
heverages

Liquor - Non-
Aleoholic beverages

Customer obtain control of non-alcoholic
beverages when the goods are delivered
to and have been accepted at their
premises, Invoices are generated at that
point in time. Advance payment is
received and there s no financing
component. Discounts are offered 1o
customers based on rates approved in the
agreement by the National Sales
Manager,

Revenue is recognised when
the goods are deliversd and
have been accepted by
customers at their premises,

Olass pEﬂdumS

Customers obtain control of glass
products when the goods are dispatched
from the Company’ s warehouse. Invoices
are renerated and revenue is recognised |
at that point in time, Advance payment is |
received and there 15 no financing !

component. Discounis are offered 1o 1

Revenue is rccogiiscd when
the goods are dispatched from
the Company’s warchouse,
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customers based on approved rates. |

Tops - Local sales Customers obtain control of tops products | Revenue is recognised when
when the goods are delivered to the the goods are delivered to the
customer! (s premises. Invoices are cuslomer! (s premises,

generated at the end of the day when cash
is collected from the salesman and
revenue s recognised at that point in
time. Sales are made on cash basis,
however, some contracts alloweredit and
there 15 no financing component,
Discounts are offered to customers based
on approved rates.

Tops - Sales to Customers obtain control of tops products | Revenuce is recognised when
distributors, when the goods are delivered 1o the the goods are delivered to the
institutions and customer! s premises, Invoices arc CUStOMEr! |8 premises,
departments {Tops generated at that point in time which are

transporter) usually payable within 45 days and

revenue is recognised at that point in
time. Some contracts allow credit and
there 15 no significant financing
component, Discounts are offered to
customers based on approved rates,

time. Some contracts are allowed credit
up to Rs, 300,000 and there 1s no
significant financing component.
Discounts are offered to cusiomers based
on approved rates,

Some contracts permit the customer to return items. Returned goods are exchanged only for new
goods — L.e. no cash refunds are offered.For such contracts, revenue is recognised to the extent that it
is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
OCCur,

Investment property rental income

Rental income [rom investment property is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income,
over the term of the lease, Rental income from other property is recognised as other income,
Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations

The Company applies the practical expedient as per paragraph 121 of IFRS 15 and does not disclose

information about the remaining performance obligations that have original expected duration of one
year of less,
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Contract assets

The contract assets primarily relate to the Companyl /s rights to consideration for sale of goods
provided these are not yet billed at the reporting date. The contract assets are transferred to trade debts
when the rights become unconditional.

Contract liabilities

Contract liahility is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration from the customer, If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is made, Contract
liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under
the contract.

Contract costs

(i) Costs ta obtain a contract — Incremental costs of obtaining a contract i.c.. sales commission paid o
third parties are accounted for as contract costs and are transferred to profit or loss aceount based on
the systematic pattern of revenue, The Company capitalizes such costs if revenue relating to such
contract has not been recognized and the Company expects to recover such costs.

(11) Costs to full fill a contract -~ Costs that relate directly to a contract and are specifically  identificd.
generate or enhance resources of the entity and are expected to be recovered i.c., direet transportation
and insurance costs are accounted for as contract costs and are transferred to profit or loss account
based on the systematic pattern of revenue. The Company capitalizes such costs if revenue relating o
such contract has not been recognized.

Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term borrowings under mark-
up arrangements, used by the Company in the management of its short-term commitments. Cash and
cash equivalents are carried in the statement of financial position at amortised cost,

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated in PKR (functional and presentation currency) at the
exchange rate prevailing on the date of trapsaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are ranslated into PKR at the rates of exchange approximating those prevalent at the date
of statement of financial position. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translations of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Operating profit

Operating profit is the result generated from continuing principal revenue producing activities of the
Company as well as other income and expenses related to operating activitics. Operating profit
exeludes finunce income and finance costs and income taxes,

Finanecincome and finance cost

Finance income includes interest income on funds invested. Markup / interest income is recognised as
it accrues in the statement of profit or loss, using the effective interest rate method.
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Finance cost comprises interest expense on borrowings and bank charges. Finance expenses are
recognised using the effective interest rate method. Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of
any qualifying asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use or when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
assct for its intended use or sale are complete. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset ar¢ recognized in statement of profit or
loss,

Segment reporting

Operating scgments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker. Management monitors the operating results of its business segments
scparately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance
asscssment.Segment results, assets and liabilities include items dircetly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
investment property, investments andother CXPEnses.

Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted carnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effeets of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

CHANGE IN SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

Following new standards, amendments or interpretations became effective from 01 July 2020, but
they do not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements:

'_E'_?_l'i‘a:ctivc Date ) New standards or amendments
1 January 2020 Amendments  to  references to  Conceptual
i Framework in IFRS Standards
| January 2020 Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS 1
and [AS &) -
I January 2020 ' Definition of a business (Amendments to IFRS
3)
1 January 2020 | Interest rate benchmark reform {Amendments to
. _ IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7) =
I June 2020 COVID-19 Related  rent  concessions
| (Amendment to IFRS 16) |
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021 i bali]
SHARE CAPITAL Mole { Hx, "THHDy { R Ty
Amthorized share cupital 6l R 300,01
Thix represents M0, 000 | U200 300,008 ordinary shanes al B, 10 cach.
Isssued, subscribed and paid sp share capital
201 0 i | aaq
il Mumber i Fes, "W B CHHEY
Zhd 00N 204,000 Ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each, fally paid in cosh L4l 2640
2739960 27.39% 630 Ordinory shares of Bs, 10 gach, issued as bonus shares 273,90 273990
27,03 b b 27.463,63(0 276, 660 20 A

All ardinary shares rank equally with regand to the Company's residisal asscts, Holders of these shares ans entathed o divadends Trom tme o time
amd are entitbed W one vole per share w generad mectings of the Company.

DLP, Eduljii & Company [Private) Laimited {incorported m Pakistan) and Kmgsway Fund (meorporated v Graosd Duchy of Luxembourg)
(Tissocrated undertakings™) hobd 4009 950 (2020: 48392959} and 6,565 885 (2020: T654855) ondinary shares of Rs 1 each respectively, at
the reporting date, Fumtlser, directors hodd 3,615 6605 (20200 5,620,464 ) ordinary shares of Rs, 10 each ai the reparting date,

Capital managenent

The Comipanys objective when managing capital is 40 sateguand the Company®s ahality 1o conbimue as a goang concern s thal i can contmuag 1o
prawvide retums for sharchalders amd benefits for other stakehoblders, and Lo munlam a strong capital base W suppor the sustained developiment
of its husimesses,

Thie Comgany manages its capital straeture which comprises eopital and reserves by manitoring retwmn on net assets and makes adpustments 1o 1t
i i lighr of changes in econamic congitions. I arder o maintaim o adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust e amount af
diwidend paid o shareholders andlor sswe new shares. There were no changes o Conmpany™s appeodch to capital managerment during the vear
aml the Company 15 nol subpeet b extermally impesed capital requirement.

2021 2020
CAPMTAL RESERYE Mot | Fes. W) | B KIS
Capital ruserve kA Jh%1 LR
This reserve e mot avaslable for distnbation,
REVENUE RESERVES
Cieneral reserve 327042 227442
Contingency reserve i, il AW
Unnppropriated prodits 1l TINTHET 1N 1 34
TAISHID 15, TRS, 1 Th
St
This represents utappropriated profits which ore availahle for distribution.
2zl 20240
KEVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND ROU ASSETS - Q
B ERLTH
NET OOF TAX {Ha M} {Rs 1]
Ralance at (1 July 2970997 1EGRO20
Surplus arsing on revaluation during the year 1145976 154,429
Deficit{zumlus) an disposal of operating fixed assets 17,4876 (4.799)
4,140,849 1,047,650
Transferred to equity in respect of imcremental depreciation charged during the Vear:
Surplus - net of deferred tax lability (73713 [50,170)
= Related delorred tax babulay (AL 1 0E) P HEAG2)
(I03HZ1) (706621
Surplus on revaluarion of property, plant and equipment at 3 June 4 03T A2K 297607

Rulated deferred tay labiling -

O revaluation surplus ot 01 July 1,41
Oy rewvaluition surplus ansing durning the year [44, T84
O operating fined misets disposed of T duning, the yeor 1,392
Oromeremental depreciztion chareed dunng the vear 2447
(263,710 [53,R1%)
Halunce at 3 Junc 3,773,307 2HNE, LT
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This represents revalustion surplus on revaluation of Tands, butldings, plant, machinery and equipment,

LEASE LIARILITIES

Lease Liabalitnes
Less: Curment portion

Nao-current poction of lease labihities

Movement of lease linbilities under IFRS 16 15 o Tollows;

Halange a0 01 July

New lease liabilities
Inferest

Paymients during the year

Balbunce ot 30 June

Current portion of lease lahilitics

Wor-current porton of lease Habilities

Maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments that will be paid after the reporting dite is ws follow:

L than one year
Ol lo tavo vears
Two to three
Thiree 1o for

oz 202
s, "0 { Fs D00
215,500 112,420
(22.046) {89854
3.754 22,561
112,420 205,238
4,020 7378
6350 13,401
196,994 (113597
15800 112420
22046 (89,550
3,754 22 561
20z 2020
(s, iy (B T}
12,237 26,127
BA9IR AT
7462 420
- TS
18627 122 RES

Leuse liubilities include Rs 8,369,354 apainst leased vehicles from lnancial institutions, The lease term for these arangements is 3 vears and
these carry markup ranging from  56% 10 14.50% (20200 8.24% 10 14.65%) per annum. At the completion of the bexse werm, the Compuny has
the option to sequire the assets upon complete payment of all instalments and adjustment of lepse key money. The facility i secured by way of

ownership of the beased vehicles by the Dmaneial insttutions.

LONG TERM LOAN 2021 2020
[ H, T LR ]

Balance at 01 July h
Receipt of loan 112 J40,285
Recopnition of deferred grant 1.1 (34,397
Effeetive interes 149,450
Repayment (44.172)
Balanee at 30 June IR1. 160 -
Mumi-current portion 124,749 -
Clurrent portion 156,417

BN 166 -
RECOGNITION OF GOVERNMENT GRANT
Balange at 1 July "
Additon 11.2 34,3097
Armoriization of deferred grmt (17.514) -
Bulance at 30 June 16,543 _
Mom-gurment portion 1859
Current portion 13724 -

16,583
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In an attempt to mitigate the effeet of the COVID 19 pandemig, the State Bank of Pakistan ("SBP"} introduced “Refinange Scheme for Payment
of Wages and Saluries to the Workers and Employees of Business Congems" whereby financing at low mark-up rates was mide available o the
entities on the condition of not Laving off the workersfemployvess and payment of salaries and wages of permanent, contractual, daily wagers and
cutsourced emplovess from April 2020 to June 2020, During the year ended 30 June 2020, the Company ohtained long teem loan under this
sgheme from United Bank Limited which is secured by first charge over fixed assets of the Company excluding land and building amounting to
R 534 million. The loan is repayable in & equal quarterly instalments due from | April 2021, Interest chargeable under the refinance scheme is
0,75% per annum. Accordingly, an amount of Rs 34,39 million has been recopnised us deferred grant income which represents the difference
between the actual loan recerved and present value of repayments of principul and interest a1 incremental borrowing rate of the Company e, 6
months' KIBOR + 1% per annum, Deferred grant is heing amortized over the life of the loan, There were no unfulfilled conditions reluted 1o this

grant at the reporting date,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2021 2020

Naote { His."DHMD ) (R ‘000
Met defined benefit liability - gratuity 12.1 266,759 a9y e
Net defined benefit liubility - compensated beave absences 15,218 13,711
Total employee benetit lubility 251,974 THTATT
et defined benefit wsset - pension 12.2 30189 15,334
Net defined benefit liability - grataity
The Company eperstes an unfunded gratuity scheme for s cligible employees.
Moventent in mef deffned benefie lability - gratuio
Balange at 01 July 249,266 247630
Charge for the vear 12.1.2 34,8406 50,010
Experience sdjustments on delined benefit liability 12.1.3 38,025 (17403}
Benefits puid (55,3TH) {31.021)
Balance at 30 June 12,11 266,759 2448 200
Reennciliation of liahility recognised in the statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit ohligation 266,759 249 266
MNet defined bencii Lability 266,759 249 266
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2021 200
Clarge to profic or s Nt LTI { R NI
Current service cosl 16,3217 16925
Interest cost 18,520 EERIER]
121,21 3d Kdi A
Expense is recognized in the following Hie items in profit or loss:
Cost of sabes 0,121 L
Sellemp and sdistribution CXPENKES 3.7 .95
Acdiminasirative expenses 10955 4,955
34840 000
plid | 20024
Charge ¢ (eredit) to other comprehensive income | R, THHE) | Bes MM
Actuarnl losses (g Irom changes in hmeneal assumptions 383 {1,123)
Experience adjustments on defined benefin abaliny 37072 {16,240
IRM2S (17,400

key scluarial wxsumptinns

The Lnvest actwarend vadution wis carried out, o 30 June 2021, wsang progected unn eoedit method with the following assumptions:

Nuote 2021 2020

Ihscount rate used for mterest cost an prolin or lss RADY, 14.25%,
[hseonnt vt used For reporting date abaliny 10,0155 w507
Sailary ineneise wsed T neponting dite liability

Salary prowth me for 2002 and onwarnds Mia .50
Ihete of mext expected saliry merise W July 2021 00 July 2020
Martaliny rate 12,141 SLIC 2 =205 SLIC 2000-200%
Withadrmwal mies Age - Rased A = Hased
Kohiremenl assampdanm Age bl Mg Gl

Acsamiption repardemge foture mortality has been based on Stae Lile Corporateen (SLIC 200020051, ulumate owertality sate with | year sethack
s per recommendation of Pakistin Socsery of Actuarnies (PR

Semshtivity amalvsis

For a change of 1M husis poanis, present value of defined benefic habality a1 repomimg date would have been as Golbows:

2zl bR | 2020 Al
Incrense Theoreuse Incrsse Necreise
{ w0y i Hs. Wy i Bs. THHDY Y [ TI0
Driscomnt e 2401654 2RI 196 231,143 267037
Salary increase rule PH1.238 24,260 THT AT 332 K14

Adthough the analysis does not take e secount full disagibution of cosh Mows expected wmber the plan, 1t docs provide an approxemation of the
sty ity of the wssumplions shown,

The Company’s expected charge for defined benefit liability - graminy for the next year is Rs. 4454 millvon.
Risks avsociated with delined benefit liability - gratuicy
Fiwal Salary Kisk (limked te inflation risk)

The sk than the Tinad solary an e tame of cessation of servace s greater than what was assumed. Since the benefit i coloulated on the final
salary fwhach will closcly relleel inflation and ather macrocconomic fictors), the benelit amount increnses as snlnry increises

Salury Increase Risk

- Marralioy risk

The risk that the actual menality expenence = different than the assiemed morabity, This effect is more pronounced in schemes where the age
anid service chstnbetion 1s on the hll:'rlc'r sl

= Withdrowal Rixk

The nsk ol aciual withdrwals expenienee o different tom the pssumed withdrowal probabiline The significance of the withdrwal fsk varies
wirl the age, service wnd the entitled benefits of the beneficrary.
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Expected maturity profile

21 2020
Following are the expected distribution and timing of henefit payments at the reporting date: (s, "00HDy { K 000
Year 1 1205 [[DEA
Year 2 26,321 45,774
Year 3 32645 28,685
Yoear 4 36363 30,794
Year 5 43,616 2575
Yoz & 1o Year T 154,031 138,24
Yoear 11 and beyond 1,462,944 HEA A6
2021

Present value of
defined benefit

lindiliny

Historical information LSS LLICIN]

2021 ity TEH

2020 249, 26k

2004 247.6TR

2018 242 424

2m7 1R2959

202 2020
Weighted sverage duration of defined henefit liability (years) b3 6
Net defined benelil asset pension
The Company operates a funded pension scheme for its elpible employees,
201 2020

Muovenrent in met defined henefir axvet pension Moty (Bus. 00Ny (s 00k
Balance at 0] July {15,334) (20,934}
Charge for the year 12.24 (59) {7,558}
Remepsurement gain recognieed in other comprehensive income 12.2.6 (T 149%) Lo BT
Coniributions by the Company (5.598) {5685}
Balance at 30 June 12.2.1 (3, THY) (15,314
The amount recognized in the statement of financial position is as follows
Present value of defined plan habaly 12.2.2 40,574 47404
Fair value of defined plan asseis 12.2.3 {71063} {6l K24
Met defined benefit assel (30, 159} [15.335)
The movement in the present value of defined plan liahility is as follows
Present value of defined henefit Tinbiliey at 01 July 47494 RENG R
Current service cost 1482 (RR Y
Past serviee cost - (5,10
Interest cost 3,043 44633
Benefins paid during the year {2,207} (2366
Remeasurement gain (9, 838) 15591
Present value of net defined benefit liability at 30 June 40h,X74 47, 494
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2021 200

1225 The movement in the fair value of defined plan assets is as Tollows Mote { s, (MM { s, Ty
Fair virlwe of plan assets at 01 July HLE20 55,620
Contributions puid mto the plan 550 5,683
Expected return om plan assets 5454 B, 163
Bencfits pand by the plan (2,207 12, 3t}
Returm on plan asel excluding interest income (641} 14,277
Fair value of plan assets w30 Jume 12.2.5 T1,003 LR )

1224 Expense recognized in profit or loss
Curvent 5emvice cosl 1,442 (WL
Interest cost on defined benefin plan 1943 4633
Pust service ot . (5,168
Interest ncome on plan asscts 15.484) (%, 163)

{50 17,565

1225 Plan assets comprise of
Units in open end Tunds 15,626 16,710
Bretence saving cortificales 49,266 45,330
Cashoat banks 3,167 778

71,059 62827

1226 (Credit) / charge to other comprehensive income
Actuanal gans from changes in financial assumptions (4.724) 14,504
Fxperience adjustments on detined henefit asset (50114} T
Remeasurement gain L] 4,278

[, 19%) 19471

1227 Key actuarial assumplions p{ 12} 20240
Dscount rate wsed for interest cost i profit or loss RAED%, 1d,25%%
Duscount rate wsed for reporting date assel 10.00%% R.50%
Salury mecrease wsed for reporting date assel M™ia R.50%

Sulary growth rate for 2021 and oawards T R.50%%
Next expected salary inerense 01 August 2021 O Awgust 2020
Maortality rate 1228 SLIC 2001-2005  SLIC 2001-2005
Withdrawal rates Ape = Based e - Bused
Retirement assumplion Age il A o)

1228 Assumption regarding future mortality has been based on State Lifc Corpostion (SLIC 2000-2005), ulamate mortality rate with | year setback
ws per recommendation of Pakistan Socicty of Actuaries (PSOMA)

12,29 The caleokstion of the defined benefit asset 15 sensitive 1o assumptions sel oul above, The following tble summarizes how the impact on the
defined benefit nxset ! libility at the reporting date would have mereased ¢ decreased a5 4 result of a change in respeetive assumptions by 100
husas provinies:

2021 2021 2020 20240
Increase Deerense Increase Decrease
{ (M0 { Bs "Wy { Hs, Ty { R '0040}
Discount rate 4SS 4, 104 34.735 42 607
Salury morease rute 42441 AR977 10951 3,900
[2.2.00 Risks asseciated with defined benefit asset - pension

Final Salary Kisk (linked to inflation risk)

The risk that the final salary at the tme of cessation of serviee is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is ealeulzted on the final

salary {which will closely reflect inflation and other macroecononmie Gctors ), the benefit smount incremses as salary ingrenses,
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Salary Increase Hisk
- .l.!rur.ru.l'i.g' Fixk

Thie risk that the actual oserality experienee is different than the assumed mortality. This effect s more provounced in schemes where the ape
amel service distrabution is on the higher side.

- Withdrawal Rixk

The risk of actual withdrowals experience 1 dilterent from the weumed withdrowal probability. The significonce of the withdrawal nisk vanes
with the age, serviee and the entithed benetits of the beneliciary.

Investment Kisk

The risk of the imvestment usderperfosming and being not sufficient to mect the labalites,

21 220
12,211 Weighted averape durstion of delined bene it asset (vears ] 1
221 2020
13 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - NET Mare i Bes. 0oy 1B T
Delerned . labiling - nes 131 40,382 234 W63
13,1 Movement in deterrad tax lability - net
. Rrcopnired in 2
e s e — N
) (Mate 39) hensive income
(s "M
2021
Tamable temporary differences
Propery. phant and equipment
aud pangible assets 316588 (59.798) 226,790
Right of Tse asset - 5268 5265
Rewnluation aeples oo
property. plar and equapasent 95262 (30,407) 04,5817 269582
Ner defined benefit asset - pension 4446 6,976 (26T} B,758
426,296 (117.964) 021640 S10,493
Deiductible temporary differeoces
Loss allowance for ECL on trade debis .5 L1454 || 33
Provision for Gas Infrastmaches (74,088) 74088 || : .
Net defived benefir liabaliny - prarnsty (72.288) (16,099) 1nez (77 A6
Comgpensared absences - (4412} . (4412)
Provision for imvemonss (15670 | (3,.586) (19, 558)
Lease liahilities (32502} | 25120 | | ] (7 482)
(196,433) 76,265 1oz (109,141)
>
2020 229 863 (41,699 113,187 401 352
Taabde remporary dfferences.
Progermy. plant and equipment
and ipfangible assets 286438 40,150 - 116588
Revamnon surplus on
property, plant and equpment 65486 {15.008) 44784 GE262
Net defined benefit asset - pension £, 360 3849 [5.763) 4446
355284 5591 39021 426296
Deductible rengporary differences
Loss aliowance for ECL on trade debts 1881 | ﬁﬂ4]| . 11.785]
Provasien for Gas Infrastracnie 1 -
Development Cest (74.085) : [T4088)
et defined benefit liabsliry - pranaty (TLETY| (5508 | 5047 (7228%)
Provisien [or slow moving ioventones (11.199) : U-‘”i}'| |: . (13.670)
Lease liabilitics (2019: Finance lease proyon | 20546 [l ! (32.602)
linbelities) | {l
(136.75%) (64.725) 5047 (196.433)
287D _(35.734) 44.068 120,863
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Payable 1o contractors and suppliers

Accrued labalities

Security deposits

Paalile 10 Workers" (Profit) Partecipation Fund {WPPF)
Payihle to Workers' Weltare Fund (WWFy

Provision For Gas Inlrastraciune Development Cess (G
Prowisica For ps LandT differential

Prowesion for water tx/charges

Withholding fax payahic

Riles rax payable - net

Export duty pavahle on PMEL and beer

Ailwtax payable

Uncarnced income

Cther payables

Recn rl'l:h.' duposity

Beeurity depaosiis

2021 2020
Note { s, (MM} s D00

260,393 247,331
151,503 Tr012
14.1 321,331 27031
14,2 110,551 TTHET
14.3 15,582 18,497
135,901 155474

162 133,245 -

T3 46,307 -
4, 8 1,145
150,649 151,307
[NLLE 2] LIS
BEIY ETEs
2.4M02 2,354
344609 33670
1218348 1,204,077
I4.1.1 A2,331 27031

These reprosent wutilizahle amounts received s security deposits from dealers and supplicrs of the Company, Ol of this, an ameunt of Rs,

23,142 million (2020 B, 224 mullion) is kepl inaosepanste bank aceount.

Payable to Waorkers' (Profit) Participation Fund (W PPF)

Balance w010 July

Interest on funds wtilised i the Coanpany's busingss
Charge tor the year

Payrments w the Fund dunng the vear

b o1 30 June

Payalde 1o Workers' Welfare Fund (WWEF)

Hiulance at 01 July
Chiarge for the e
Addjustrments chmed sguinst income L
Balumee ut 30 June

202 2020
Minte (M) [ Hos 0T

77,887 130,853

a7 = 11,06
s H8,553 35814
(35,851 R

110,551 77 457

18,497 95249

5 33,536 20183
b1 {15451} (22615
15582 e

Procurcment during the vear includes procurement of serviees amountng to Bs. 19024 million 2020

Provvincl Sales Tax
CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Conireet lashaletses
These represent wiused advasees fonm customers agamst sake of poods.
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Cantingencies:

Lettgr of guarantee sued by banks on belalCof the Company

15.1

¢ Ky, 26567 millon) subject

22616

104 542

e 1.1

102577

ol

These reproscit bank guamntees ssued 1o the normal course of business to %oi Northern Gus Pipelines Limied (“SNGPL®) for commercial and

inslustrial e of s, Seeunities against these puarantees hive been disciosed in node 3005 to these fnancial stalements,
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The Company has been paying sui gas industrial bills based on gas tarifTat Bx, 488 per MMBTL and Hs. 573 per MMBTL for captive power
meter, ax vompared 0 the bill rised by SNGPL at Rs. 600 per MMBTU due to the litigations along with the industey, Previously, the
Company had not recognised the provision for difference between the aforesaid rates amounting to Rx, 13324 million {“gos taeifl
ditferential™). However, in July 2021, SNGPL raised demand smounting to Rx, 254678 million, inclusive sales tax amounting to Rs. 15002
million on gas tariff differental and ke payment serchange amounting to Rs. 130779 million. The Company in consultation with its legal
advisars, has recognised the provision amounting to s 13324 million, being the oniginal gas taniff ditferential, however, the Company has
nod recognized provision for aforesaid sales tax and Iate pavmment surchirge, since the Company along with the industry had filed the suit
Peshuwer High Court and had obtaned stay order against the disputed gas tanft differential, Based on legal consultation, the management of
the Company 1 confident that the eventual decision will be in favour of the Company.

The Company, along-with several other botthing / beverage companies, 1% invelved in litgation ansing from 2 suo moto notiee of the
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (ease no 26 of 2008) regasding vse of ground |/ surface water, The Company alongwith beverage
industry is contesting this decision of Honorable Supreme Court and has filed o review petition through its legal eounsel,

The Punpab Water Act, 2019 was promulgated with effect from 13 December 20019, Based on legal consultation, the Company has recognisesd
Trability amounting to Bs. 3544 million for water consumed at Rawalpindi, Punjab with effect from 13 December 2009 at the rmie of Rs, 0,25
peer litre of sales made il 30 June 2021

The Company hud received notice from the Govemment of Khyber Pakhtunkhwa on sceount of water charges, The Company had filed wril
petition in the Peshawar High Coert agoinst recovery of billed amounts. In this respect, the Khvber Pukhtunkhwa Water Act, 2020 was
promiulgated with effect from 24 July 2020, contaning a clavse validating the osders issued and actions tiken by the Government and ils
related agencies i relation e water charges prior to 24 July 2020, The Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Water Act, 2020 comes into toree in such arcas
and on sweh dates as the Ireigation Department with approval of Chiel Minister may specily. In the sbsence of such specification, the
Company has recopnised lability amounting o Rs, 10869 million for water consumed at Hattar, Khvber Pakhiunklwa with effeet from 24
July 2020 a1 the rate of Bs. 025 per Bitre of sales made il 30 June 2021, The Company believes that the validation of the orders and/os
actions of the Gavernment of Khyber Pakhiunklwa and related agencies prior o promulgation of the aforesaid Act are not supported by any
legrstation, and therefore ane considered sllegal. In this respect, the Company is in the process of filing an amended petition befone the
Peshawear High Court,

The Company s mot recognised any provision foe water consumied prior o cosctment of the Punjab Winer Act, 2009 and the Khyvber
Pakhtunkhwa Water Act, 2020 amounting o approximately Rs. 23,481 million and Rs. 15924 million respectively.

For contingencies related to tax matters, refer note 39,

2021 2020

Commitments: Note (LS LI [ Fes TN
Outstanding letter of credits inelwding capital expenditere 16.5 401,317 223136
Caprita! cxpenditure confracis

- Muchinery - 20,485

- Oitheers 401,317 193451
For detanls of secuirty against Letter of Credits, refer o note 3005 (h), () and (d).
PROFPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Crperating fixed wsets 17.1 6,355,166 S 15040l
Capital work in progress (CWIF) 17.2 = 760

35500660 5057200
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

1700 Landd includes 2 kanals and 3 marlas in possession of Military Estate Office (MEQ), Army Houwsing Colony for construction of a housing
colony. This has been stated at 2002 revalued amount in these financial statements which amounts n Rs. 2.52 million. The Company had
filed a ease against MEO for this unauthorszed occupation. The court of Civil Judge, Rawalpindi has decreed apainst MEC for vacaling the
land. However, the execution of the court decree is in process at the reporting date.

17.1.2  Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
The ktest revaluation of the Company’s land, buildings, plant and machinery was made on 30 June 2021 resulting in net surplus of
R 1,145.9% millon,

Had there been no revaluations, related figures of the revalued sssets would have been s lullows:

Cost Accumulated Written down

deprecintion value

{ K, (M) | B, 0k} (R, "04h)

Land 120,138 - 120,138
Buildings 461,012 (150,210 310,802
Plant, machinery and equipiment 3518085 (1.778.725) 1,749,360
2021 4,109,215 {1.928.9315) 2. 150,300
2020 3,994,507 {1.547.815) 2446603

221 2020

17.1.3  Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows: Maste { K, (M) R
Cist ol sales 32 IT0e14 157060
Selling and distribution expenses 33 1und 2ARG
Administrative crpenses 34 15.074 15517

JEH.ER2 FTEARD

1704 Based on the revalustion carried vut a1 30 June 2021, the forced sales value of the land, building and plant, machinery and equipment is Rs,
2 76061 million, Bs, 344,63 million and Rs, 1,993,658 million respectively.

1705 Purticulars of immovable fixed wssets (.. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Laoation Usage of Total Arca of Total Covered
Immavahle Lamad Arrea (5q. Fi)
property {Acres)

al Wurree Brewery Estate, 3 National Park Road, Rawalpind Corporate office 2945 3K2.225

and manufacturing
fucility

hy Murree Glass Factory, 24, Phose 3, Industrial Bxtate, Hattar, District Harripar, Manufacturing .00 54,531
KPPK Tacility

) Plot 3102, Industrial Estare, Hattar, District Harripur, KPR Warchouse 2.0 6,354

di Mlea 1304, Industrial Estate, Hattar, Dstnct Harmpur, KPR Wirehouse |40k 18,177

@) Plat 1213 Township Industnal Ares, Lahore Warehouse and (L38 4215

office

f Tops Factory, Plot 1411, Phase-I11, Industrial Estate Hanar, District Hanpur, Manufacturing 2 33,316
KPE facility

) Khasra no. 175, Khewat no, 57, Khatooni no, 94, Mawa Lohvamwals, Tehsal - Warehouse .26 %213
and Dhstrict Gujranwala

h} Plot 1072, Phase-111, Industrial Fstate Hattar, District Harpur, KPR Manutactuning 2 15,454

[acaliny
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1706 Detail of dixposals of operating lxed assets
The details of operating fixed assets sold during the year, having a net book value in cxcess of Rs, S00.000 cach, ure as follows:
Comt / . Relation with
i
Descripliom revilued Carrying Sale L Furchasers Company / Moy of Disposal
vl priceeds p
AMDUnT Dircctoe
{FEs, 0Ky
IElamt angd Machinery
M-3 Flex Machnine i 70,037 15,015 15,6 1613 M Teer Tecl .
d Mune Venafier
Akt o Solutions
Vehicles
Haomalu Caty 1.72% Tl4 (L U5 Mr. Aiibid Emplowee A et Company’s poley
Vovuta Corally 2H65 233 2461 130 Mr. Mikbar Hussaon Fmployec A per Company's policy
Huomda City 1,943 Tl 1.155 A Mu. Samina Shodumd Frgrlince A por Comgany’s policy
Humda Ciry LB51 T L1T0 M par Mubamimsd Ajmal Employee As per Company’s policy
Huongla Ciry 1.3y T4 (ML 451 M. Faker E Mchmood  Frplovee/KMP As per Company's policy
Auzregate value of oiher Toh il 457 156 Muluple persons Mune lendar
items with individual
bk value mot exceeling
s, SN0, EHME
2021 w304 20, inlWE 2, (L 5, dhd Adsar reder nole 3
020 17,540 EE 10502 T Alsnreler note 34
22 2020
172 Capital work in progrees (W] F) Mute (R o | R T
Ralance at 01 July Tl 160 548
Additions 137 62006
97 231852
Traesforrcd to aperating fved ausciy:
Buildings on frechold Lind 171 {76 REINEAR
Plant, machinery and equipmen 17.1 (137} (220,913
(K97 (231,00 )
Buakance at 30 June {representing civil works) - T
I RIGHT OF USE ASSETS 021 200
COsT {Hs, "My { B, Ty
Balinee an 07 July 412879 61,141
Additipns £.64u4 7378
Transter to Property, plamt and equipment (355,380} (11,74
Revaluation surplus - 57,253
Dispoecals - {1.152)
Balange at 300 Jung 63,193 412574
DEPRECIATION
Balanee a1 01 July Q0,320 51,898
Charge for the year 145.1 ELE S 43,133
O transfier to Property, plant and equipment (¥9.241) (4,711
Balance at 30 June 37557 B30
Carrying amount 15,636 322 550
Rate of deprecintion per annum (%) 1% 10 20% 10M% to 2005
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Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost ol sales 2H.608 315,365
Selling and distribution expenses 4,601 5,703
Administrative expenses 3.269 20065

J6.4TH 43,133
A ol the reporting date, fight of use asscts consist of leased premises and vehicles.
INTANGIELE ASSET
Computer seftware 19,1 TH2 1,301
Reconcilintion of carrying amounts
Cost
Babumee at 01 July 1595 1,595
Additions -
Ralanee a1 30 Jung 2.595 2,505
Acvumuluted amortization
Balance a 01 July 1.294 T8
Amortiation 34 s19 519
Babimee ol 30 June 1513 | 20a
Carrving valuc TH 1,311
Rate of amortszation per annum 20" i
Amortztion charge for the year has been allocited o administrative expenses.

2021 2020

ADVANCES FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES (s, 00N (R 0
Advanes for civil works 764 A, 500
Advanees for purchase of fixed assets 35414 35,470

42,474 X200
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Reconciliation of carrving amount: 20 2020

Mote (Bus. b0y { s, THMI

Balance at 01 July 3SK,62T7 R25le
Addition during the year - 9050
Change in fair value I 39,250 24.4n1
Balance at 30 June 2L U7 R8G 35E.02T

The investment progserty represents lands and buildings held for capatal appreciation and 1o eam rental income, Cn 30 June 2021, an exercise
wars carmied out by an independent valuer to aseertain the fair value of investment property. The price of land of the investment propery is
wssessed bosed on market research cormed out i the ares where the property is situated. The fair value of the property @5 based on
independent valeer's judgment about avernge prices prevalen! on the sand date and has been prepared on openly available [ provided
formation after making relevant inguirics from the market. Changes in fair value are recognized as gains in profit or loss and included in

‘other imcome’, All gains ;

e unegalized,

Purticulurs of investment propercty of the Company and the forced sale values are as follows;

Area FsV

Lawcmtion Sy Fis R (WY
Plot 1213, Township Industrial Area, Lahore R.115 176,151
OdTice Suite 509, 5th Floor, ISE Tower, Blug Arca, [slamabad 348 32082
Office 411, Fourth Floor, The Forum, Bleck 9, Cliflon, Karachi 1038 15 587
WRP Ruilding, Mumree Brewery Estate, National Park Road, [slamuabod | A48T 4,271
House ne. 20, 51 no, 37, Sector F-701, Dalamubd 5505 100,112

338,203
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Muasurement of fair values

Fair value hivrarchy

The Bor value of investment properny wis determined by cxiernal independent valuer, having appropre
qualifientions and recent experience in the location and category of the propeny bemg valved, The fir value me

property his been cateporised as g Level 2

Sce the values have been determmned by external independent vilser and mipuls are unobhservable, sensitivity an

presented.

LONG TERM ADVANCES - SECURED

Ter emplovees
L D wrthin one year, shown under cument assets

¢ rl:l:n.‘tgl]i.\u.! professwmn
nsurement of the investment

ilysas has ot been

021 202n
Naole [ Rs. M) { B Mk
19621 20,722
27 (5673} [ER A
13,948 17086

These advanees carry smberest at 10% (2020 11%) per annun aned are repayabile in pemods up 1o theee years, These advances hive been
piven in aecordance with the Company’s policy for the purchase ol vehicle, These advances are secured agunst the awnership ol vehicle,

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

Anvartised sosy

Pakiztan Investment Bouds (P15

o 2020
Mol i Rs. T (K= TI0)
il | 14,466 517473

Tl represents investnent m Pakistan lnvestment Boads (PIEs} havaing face value of Bx, 500 millien (2020: Rs, S00 million. These PIRs

SHITY A coupor date of §.75% (20200 8.75%) per annum with profit payable on o hall wearly hisis, The maturity date of

20124
LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Lang term deposits

Theese represent depasats maimained with the ubility companics. These are unsceured, mterest free s nelumdable on e

INVENTORIES

Storvs, spare party aad oo feofx
Hlowres
Spare parts and loose tooks

Stawekk I frade

Ravw imaterual

Waork in process

Stowck under maturation - WP
Fimished goods

Latwn? prevviionr for slanw sonving invemtarios

A substntial porion of malt whisky will not be sold within one year becase of the duration of the nging proces.
classificel as stock under maturstion and i= included i corment assets, although portion of such inventories m
thant one year which is the usual sime pericd. Warchousing. insurance and ather ca mying charges

mncladed ininventory cost,

Movement in provisien for slowhng inoving inventorics

Balunee a1 01 July
Priveissom for slow soving mventories
Balanee at 30 June

Plls s 21 April

221 2020
Note { Rex, "B { R, My
24 I8AM 35,754

ronimnalion of services,

2l 2020

Mote (R, "0 {ESTHMY
180,279 1, i
ed 542 63,317
244,821 207,963
1.243.687 153,133
1A916 125,552
L8 | 167,919 124,524
216,065 MRS R
1,758,607 L70s 19
252 (65 K0T) 154,041
1,937,621 LR 10

Al minht whisky 15
ay be aged for periods grester
applicable to malt whisky held for agimy s

2021 2020

Mo T TN [ R W00
54,043 EERAL
24 11,764 15428
BE_RIT £4.041
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Marree Srawery Company Liniled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

TRADE DERTS - Unsecured

Constdered gomd
Considerad doubtful

Lexs: loss alfowance for expected credit losses

Lawss allowanee for expected eredit hosses

Ralance ar 01 July

Met remeasurement of loss allowance
Balanee at 30 June

The ape analysis of trade debits, at the reporting dute, is as Tollows:

Past due

-up i 3 months

-y B 3 o B months
-up e & R 12 manths
-more than one yeur

ADVANCES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVAELES

Advances 1o employees - unsecured

Current portien of long term advances - secured
Adlvances 1o suppliers - unsecured

Prepayments

Interest accrued

Oither receivahles

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Ivestments af fuir value theeugh profic or foss
Shares of Iisted companics
Butual funds

fﬂ]'{‘,‘u’.rﬂll,'f.lf o .I'Jn']ﬂ'.lrnrl.'u'l"ﬂl st
Imvestment in term deposit receipt - LISTH

MNode

Nate

8.1

|4 | 2020
{ R (WD) { B, I
nan 25,5260
1.141 h154
32513 32080
(1,141} [8.154)
31,372 25926
6,154 3037
(5.013) 3117
1.141 0,154
2zl 2020
(Fus. D00 { B 00
3443 14,273
1) 16,104
R0 1,203
= AW
32,513 32080
696 2039
2673 3636
186,543 | Ko, T4
4,671 5570
9,786 4,260
577 574
208,246 ENET
0zl 2020
{ Fs,"0HHI ) (R 000
f [
1,993,768 LGT2R57
- SL2RN
1.993.774 1,723,243

These represent funds nvested in 125,55 million {2020: 110.94 million) units of various mutual funds having marker value ranging from

Rs. i 60 to s, 50588 (2020: Ry, 985 to Bs, S05.26) per unit,

ADVANCE TAX - NET

Tax refundable at 01 July

Prowesion for tax - curfenl

Ingome tax pand during the ygar

Ingorme tax adjusted against Workers' Welfare Fund
Tax nefundable at 30 June

Note

39

14.3

21 2020
{Rs, "N} (R 00
372,106 317802
(418,086) {301,970}
116,770 A, moR
(15.451) (22.615)
255330 372,106
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

20z 220
Nate { K. 001y i s M )
CASIEAND BANK BALANCES
il o hanad IELRL R o
Casly i transai .
Hanking isinoment in hand el/8} LUTIRTE [ERRVE
Cash ot banks:
= Juwal disrmeney urrent decanints TIX0xn BN, 32N
= bowal cureenioy depisit spvonmnly A 13014, 709 i, | 344
= i curreney deposil sccount Ao 48,201 1LaGS
20056, 7% [.266,327
Rl 2097, 788 1.335,300

Thise mepresent call depasit neceipes in e e ol the Company.
Ve carmy mberest pnging Gom 3% 1 60259 (2020 5,5% 1o L060% ) per annum.
This el mbeiest ol the pite ol 0,280, (2020 0.25%) per annum.

This includes cask misgn mmsnunting fo B, 100 i (20000 Ra, b0 miilon) and B, 25 million (2020 K, 25 millivn) deposiied with
Askan ok Limited wod United Baak Liniid o securiiy sginsd leller ol pismmice Bieilibioy,

Finuncing facilitics
AL the repommgs dase, e Conmpany bk follswang fended o unfmded e freilities available from schedulad Riks:

Ronmmg Ny Geiliy amoambing b Ra 35 onillion $20200 Kx; 35 malliosig from Bk AlGah i, Fwwakpimdi. This failiry is availnhie
B Sepenther 20000 which i in process ol furher senewal G130 Sepremiver 2022, TS gimies maek up 24 the sl of 6 menths' RIBOR plin
2000 6 muonths” KIBOR plus 1% per amm, Principal o payable on expiey ér on demaid whichever is eurlier, 1t 65 secuneil s
Pl angd fuliee eurvent mssets o the Company wgisternad with Securnities wnd Fxchinge Commisston of Pakistan amounting to Ks. 75 miios
(2020 Ky, 78 maltong,

Facilitses of beyters ol paarmitee ool Teters o credic amounting 1o Bu 10 anllion (2020 85, 10 aillion) s Bs, 450 million {2000 [, 440
i) froam Bk Alfilah Limiced sespecrively were svanlable, Facilities ol letiors of puasinies and letters ol vredit are siured against present
ape] finre ansets o the Company Imd live on mporn docsiments respactively,

Fagilities of Keters of prarantes, shipping guismanbed and letiers of eevditarmsonimg i R T million (2020 B, 100 million ), Rs. 50 million
(20200 Bs, S0 ovilBaen )y andd s, 2000 mallion {20200 Ry M0 malliond From Axkaer Bank Limtted respectively are available i the Company wull 31
Octiber J021. Faellitien of lettors ol puarantee; shipping siarinee sl leiers of erodil s seouned mgninsi 100% cash’ margin and Hen on
arpon ooy

"-Niilll-.'_i of letter oof eredst amaounting e K 300 sl (20200 s 300 meillin 15 availishie om Allied Bank Limated, This j';u'ili'ly e ovan lable
lE AT Devembor 2021 This Gaeility o5 socuiad dgains fen over visid inmport documnwnls,

Faeting o leter of erodin amaounting 1o Bu 200 ol e (20208 Ra D00 milliond with sublimit of letler ol pearantes of Bs 100 millen {2020: [t

1ok ilbiesnd wis availbbe from United Bank Limited o) e weailihle o ihe Comgauny 5ill 30 June 2022, This faciliny is seeured agminst lien
ovier vkl ypennt documents and 1S cash margin or lien on deposi UL Fuos fen oser vishid inport docn s,

86
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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AET TURNOVER Mare
T Ma
Hales nay

Fealywsl aval pweviical excme diry
Trugle diseuns

Dinnggreguiion of lecnl asd internaninnal sales
L | malben A2

Expant sales

IHsugzrepation of revense from confrecty with castamers

Bt Al Gulbiw e Llsde, Pevenus o comricts witls cusbonns in daoggrepsted by primary peagriphical markel, msgor peoducts aisl

sl i of nevene recanition.

Frimury geographicsl meden

Pungab

Bl

Khylser Paklenkliwa
Ralischisian

halmahaid Capital Termdony
(thess

Murjrer proectsivericd fnem

Pakistan Mude Foreign Ligesie (PAEL)
Fezor

Mo aboolole beverages and prsficts
Tedrpah juices

Jupees Nen Returmakle

spsrkleris hailed] drmiing water

Cilawn prunlucts

(b

Timing af revenne recogmition
Prontuscts srammfarred ar i fesnt i e

Wz 02
[ {Fs Wby
1HAINTHTO 13,880,304
(2,541,126} 2R 000)
{1 AT0991) (0 BBE3A0)
(432471) (Rl E ]
P T L L]
16,079,097 (R R
BT -
16, KT K79 [REEIR
seryRn lines
BLIER mnn
B, M SR
HHTRAOTH A ETTEIY
S0 3,504,082
1944013 1,508 5006
1,447 506 BT
445070 M2Ash
1h2.nit 246,242
Iwﬂ_ﬂﬂ_ R
S5THATI SK1TEN
1, K59.1k84 22200
4, 2872 AR
[l L] TAlR T2
i 115 21,50
KEa.9710 0244974
LN 123 572
ERLETT 244
16,067,679 (RN
16 K74 LAHS0 60

Tyvum rwuntung 1o Bu 100 KD (2020, R 121 ,0000 ksl wn thie operting contrac Hibiliy halasce has buen rocopmadd dading the yenr

COsT OF SALER Mtk
Bow malerials consamed ALl

e snel mpasun goasuiiied

Fuel and prwer

Kalibren, wagss wnd other bererio na

Renurs arl masmibemese

Dleprecilsng 1703
Plemeasaisen- Righn ol L Ass (Le]

it e TR gntrad « Dmais hiadion
Uriber s fsoturieg expeinsy

Wawk bn precess includiag stock uinder ninuratlon
Cipenny ssch s 81 July
Clivamge wtinek a1 300 Juiwe

Cawt of goods nuimaliciersd
Finkshed gy

Ohpeming Kiawk al il July
Clhsimg stk at M e

Rnw materiab comumed
Cipming Mok al 0 July
Purchasas

Clhosimg stock at M fune

VLT This inchiides sl netivement benclits mvoumting i Bs, 20012 millien (2020 Hs, 37,13 mallin)

87

i 20240
{Hs 100 LaRL ]
6,177,960 EXAREE U]
195,784 LE A0
782772 730,341
ET7.402 STLTAN
117440 1|%.049
aTon4 57, 0e0
a1 CLl
RITN LY M2
FTRAT 71342
K670, 178 [
50 HA o012
L2 KES) RS0 Nmih
(4%, 475} (4T 11y
TSR 10T A58
M | 152672 ]
(206065 | MM BRI
21 TR
HIE0A1G 1,505 -4
113,133 1,053 549
M 2EH 5 20 #7138
{1,243 68T i1,133.0.331
X ERTENEE
—_——
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2021
a3 lad0
SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION FXPENSES Bty &_ | Fo "0y
Knkiries, wapes and e songfits LN 150171 133 0%
Actvert i | aned peablic iy TiEN L
Koling enpenses 200,148 il AL
Inereenigmad o ol phtainmg o gonirict « nibes doimmision BT L
Kamapley 1k EEES
Sorlen peurmmtisom 11488 10550
Fevight i 524 L E ]
Digpreciimm= Fropa iy, . wnd aquipinei (A LEbd 2488
Diepndiiinion Bight of Uiy Assat ind 401 .1
Setvice charpes aml comirmesion fk LR Fadulp & Co §Provited Limsed, o relised ponty Ay FiEeT™ 121,500
M isf vebuciios N, 107 WAT:
Dhibers Nt 43,8 i
Thiw i Bk el rymimmeend b ihn smennaeny 1o Be. 07T wBim 030 Ka, 79 miihon)
ADMININTRATIVE EXFEASES
Kaborws, wapes amid by gl is LN T 258,052
Tronelling aml eonviyane i, 1M o
Peintimg wind alatswmry A8 0, 1
Rtpaits il i emanse (AT (ERLH
Fuid st povieds LI 31401
Ihrestors” fees ansl trave ling TaM 1350
Lomnsfigincatinon Tag LR
1 aidurrams i T fi ANl
Lagead ansil pws sl 12549 15 5054
Sy ZLim% 1,0
Ihmisd s M2 4.0 ¥t
Primmdimi pewiral b R sk moving invenbsnes 52 11,744 14,424
lissibarsis LELL] 9,143
R, ralos amil pases 1, Tad FL AR
Suride e . 4, (Nl
Phepreviations [Propeny Plani & Tagubpmeii 1T 15074 (L.
hetpreation= Right 'Ll Aase) N1 Alab JAha
AR o (LS| AL %
hiws 17.69] ARk
AbEN] AL

Tuis belisibes stall oofhreimint Wenefits wimmirimg: o Ba. D00% mibliam 2020 M, 405 gl

Dhrmgatmno o (ke Mo V800 iAo § 20300 Ra. 880 ol lbom) oo b (0 enadors Fosalo b, Bocabed ai FIFCosmmene nd Wi bbag, Shabiibee-

el = A, Labure, i ity €0l Eegutlvg UNFr of b oimiipany is o Teinse

il a0

OTNER EXPENSES Sl LR 000) (1SR
Wk (fallin Marucipains Fussd (W) 142 R ARY AT
Wil Wl iling B 1 WWE) L AL 20,168
Proversion for Cips Dnlnsereune Deeve ligsmunn oss (010070 - 21,508
Primiintt B ©las a1l Teren sl [RLSELY .
Audsiarn' rermangTidinn AR b ) (M2 L)
ke deralientons Tl b
intgrmal pualint (e LS 1,752 722

PN E ] 2ELIIN
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Auditars’ remuncration Naby

Al verviges
Aivmibal il s
RHdt weiidy gt feg
e of posket expurises

Mo wadif services

Centiflenthn (o repulsiory putposes
Ok o poschict. expeeies

Crfier cnponses e vl direethy atimbutalhe 1o sogpments, For detabls, reler nuke 420
The Compamy his aatkouradd s bnsemal audil fme o oa fiomm other than soeuiony aedear,
OTHER INCOME

Uiaim o alisgwial of Gperating fixed assats 1716
Chanin ooy Pgvmess Litgrmstin ol Livesament property b Gar vabisc 1.1
Rentnl pwiismg

Saby ol bryeprodiscts [ somp sk

Tk rnioe & Lt

hhers

FINANCE OORT

Fianny eharge on leased asnets

Tk charpes

Pimiinoe disd im Salid s and Wages Relinancing Sl

Inkerest on Workens!' [Mafin) Panicipation Fund ('W PP 142
sk guasrmmiey Cominiias b

FEiffisenve inicrex on |oan

n21 2020
Am il"‘m :
1540 (KL
AZS 23
283 | M
1827 1ad52
40 Wil
41 i
411 W
E.“_. 1. M5
£ 408 £ hEn
Ag g 2 dkal
12149 [T
. (TS
m T
24340 172
Ki2uy [T
s V5 13,400
1445 55
hill .
- 1 ask
{° F] 1492
lg‘l“l -
29,51 Th il
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

AR FINANCE INCOME oz oo
N { Fs, 0y SR
Fmconie Fenm finnmelal pasets:
Interest on aglvaneas M 41
Intesunt on Puketan Investment Honds 40,761 A AN
[Returm om depmat dccoiis LR BT 120,335
Phivadened engoime 114,051 182041
Amsorizieon oy Tered pgram 17414 .
Interest om berm depisit receipis RET] 13
Linrealized pomm o remseasamernent Of slwrt Temn sty 734 249
Exehangze sy ) E-,.'lin (272N 1077
252101 3RS0

W INCOME TAX EXFENSE

ML Aamoants eaipmingo oo i o loes

Fux
Currel year 497,760 FAL552
PPraoe wwur (76741 1427
0 ATH, IR | 4
Dhelerred 131 (41.699) {35,735)
Tiw espense fiw the vear = A6 KT 350, Mt
0z 2oz
32 Reconclliation of tax churge for the vear { B, "Ly { Hs Y|
Avcounting profi befies nig 1 47,450 LT N7
Fan rate 208, 20
L smn o) i profin EEAR L] npaoi2
Tax effect of inconmy Laxahle ab [wer filis (1h051) (25, 540y
Prisse vear clurgse (T9.674) 827
Eeet ol wem raded fngemy {11,348 1 T4
thers {142} 2, A
Tax wapatin for th e ITeau7y 356,243
R

X2k T remris b b and lnefuding s year 2020 Bive been Sk, The tax juhorities gmmended the assexaments frn tiose te e ansd the
anneskmenl anders were oot by the Company befng e apeellnie Ror AN 0 dale, Bhe ie-dssoxsericnts T the T Yours 2013, 2014,
SOES. 2008 sl 2009 manls by the tax authories, vy e the acater of pdsdisions o teome, disalowanes el expenies aml ey craldits ane
ttader apical isnd sod pensdings decision Iy i Commmmssinnier fnlamd [€evenaie | Apgwnils),

B Induine 2000, the masition offieer issivd ader w reinand . winlor selthin 25 imal T of the Siles Tox Aer, 1990 fie e peeriead Jily 20102 1o
June 2008 on aceount of unreennciled il b o the Comprany with te ourpus Bis of suppliees amogmting, e K. 757K million, The
Uinmpany s Hed appeal biefiee the Commisshomgt Inbid fevenme Epiitsd and b abvanied sty agains revoveey eaeifes

Tl Compaany’s mataguemant i confident o fovorble sesplutio ol e TRt wml lence ma provision he been made (i These inansal
skatgimnents on aceount thereod,

A EARNINGS PEH SHARE « BASIC ASD DT

There o o didutive el om the base carnings per sliare of thie Commpiiy, wlieh i lescd on 03 2020

St (radie for Hae wear [ Ka 008 291,472 hE 1728
Winehiedd average nusnber Of sares (Simbeni 2760361 27003630
Earniigs per shie { Rupees) L 4.0

20
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41 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2024 204
Cash it canh equaivilents. o L popose of staensent of cush Hows L1078 1338520

Al Revwiciliathim of movements af labilltles o cash Mows prising lrom lnanciog activithes

LETTERIETITEY Lawinyd e idsis Unpplil devdilend astal
b | b bl b

---J—---_-‘1 _—

[
Platbinny i 00 Jyly Juilte IM2 2 . PAT (RTER]
[ T e
Uit prsssl - = [CTENETT JEAT 1 M)
Wi aanl 1o b -
By 11 o e | Gt [INERCH] . IIERSTEN
ol & Iinges oo Vnamemsg cush s 01557 - LR PUTLIZY
e ]
Whpa g il | il iy il MRS sty EETT A ]
Tinkatvaek o Paics [RA L - (R
B pilibimnin FRLEL Y LS
FERCD) FLR
e e | =l 1T CROCa PR
Vel |ty sl & hatingen s R
(L LR (TR (R[] [T (K1Y 1o s
Higlanre wr 1 lwiy 23638 [RFNE ] - A a4 LR
R e T ]
Vb mlwii] sl = [RIRF LT [EIRELLT]
Waswipt vt beiamy - N 2R - Adil, 2
apsnvinen 1 1 inestan W [LE ) . - (Lo ]
agmpvrnins il L = b iy
Tiwtal vhasges Frem lnsseing vebs Boss o LT [EIELLT] [Tl
]
W angesitiimn ool Roamnas Ll boy iipaemar WED 2 dnsatim - -
vl Chiniia LS L] (R L] b
Iacuigaiilioms nil Uhonnia] sl . [RERLL [ = {0, T
Linass gifinmar Jdara - - 4,078
T,37h [EETT] = TR
Fomufitnd den lariad L =l = i iy s | ekl Sl |
Wistal Nl lsiiy @ ptateed | anges * - Ll E ] AAY T
Flsbaiin'n w8 ¥ Fiims THIN 14, a0 INHRA_ [T FILE T

42 HEMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, BIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

‘The npzprepale amaints chired lor remumention nulistng benelio and perguisiies, v chief executive afilien, diroctnm il axeeubivi were

an fallevwes:
2kl A
Chierl
Gt Eowentive Exvéutives Exedutive Esecwtives
O fficer
Oifhcer
Eu'ﬂ'lm B,
Managertal remaneration [T JE NI 5625 14,675
Medical honeiie HER 1,015 HEs i
Crrasunty T conird bution 95 K&l 2 K7
Provident fursd contnbatines i L1%3 i Ky
Mo et allownnge 1,747 4,010 . .
st Tk 11,08 R b LYY
Truvelling capensg in - 2 -
Compensated ahseness 188 T ek ™
1758 AT 00 12450 I5TI
e
Sanber il persae 1 & | .

421 Tmoddimson b sbave free fumohed secommodation is provided to the chiel execunve slicer, Farther, company-mastained velckes ane ol
provided w the chiel exccutive officer asl cxocutives: the net ook vitlues: of which wry s 1099 millan (20200 s 13 3T nvitwi)
Girabity s pegable to chiet cxccutive officer aml execulives in aocondance with the tenms of employmient, while contribition for chiet
eneilive llieer uid eaecutives in eeapect of gramly amd pension are bised o sctusniol viluiton,

433 Discciors of the Conpany were vl paid sny remampranem dunng the year except for the mecting fee of Ry, 5,400,000 {2030 Rs. 28500000,
Wuanbe ol Darectors af the reporting ilate s X (20240 R,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Oiperating segmivily

The Compiiny o thase feparohbe segments, ds deseribid below, sluch are e Coompanm's strategic busites s, Thes slrategiv budines
ity effer different products wnd are meeaped separmtely Beviiise of tie pegmreient of et technolopies and marketmy stratepies, Thess
wepniei v boen wdentified o the basin of busises samaly L Davieon, Clos Division and Tops Deimon The following semiy

denuibes the eperatans of each sepurable segmen

Emﬂ:hlu seamenty dperatinn

Tasfusr Divinaim Stanulsetirame st by of sl il mon-steolils bescuees
Toprs Dhwinaimn Manufsctiriig aml sabe oF Tood pecddsicts, (4 iees ond mineral wides
Calias [Revixnimm MLanuGacturing aiml sale of phass boetles amd Jurs

For gl ol the Biivimess usil, the aodn commatiod, the Board of Dicectirs amd the Company's Chiel Executive (Fkear (0800 abang with the

il Famarieaal £ cer (0700 ) revbeiw's siteial iyt repsrisom an bejst guanterly o

Thure ane yarvmg fevels of integrtion botween tie thoe sepmients This imepeation mclusley immsfers of o msterind sl Tisiadiod inls

respectively. Tha aeeniintimg pilsewes of ihd repoetadde sepmenty are e samas desonbid im none 4,20

Perfurmemest s sl on gl |||'n|'|l Baedine diveowme fns, ain wselidind i e igimal sl aepnirts il are reviewed !'3' e
Snenpanys CEC lomg waths the CRCR Sepaent profin e o o measure fer isnsnee o naajement believes thal such informntion i the mod

relevimt o evabeat g the e los o citain septiseniy sdlitive Lbvbar amnnies that operate within these induwites
Infarimatiog abanil reportahic seginents

e dikark sl walientim of the Compinys isers i sehated bbb of i repartabde sepmieiis o s lislliwk:

Tdipauor Caluss Togn Carpuraie allfive Toral
IMvislon Ibkyisfun Phivisbini
s, 000 1M 1N s, Simid i s IHHI Y LA
Kot 2 TN LRI N Z._El-..ﬂl 33148 1,42 657
a2 k] THLRET R ] 28 L5 LA e
Laukrilitees R 1.720.42% 113874 AR 4w 120638 250421
e - e
2000 ELEETR 1320 LR .M 2054022
Sam vaeevn! el = asldithons
(U O TRT 221 Ihb K& 1Al 17055 - 195.5
sl wuipinenl Hxn Had TN R LT - s a2
Iagelal inf Bl gt ik | 4.3 1, A0 - Snild
2t A0 5N 1% - TATN
Uhlver material frems
Fatermal revinss 221 T1ATTa4 ARl bR 4,2 0,08% = 1AAET TS
kL1 [N 122 .aT2 b i s [EEINGT
Ity -sapment nevenae p T N27.2h2 | AL M A2 TORENTE
2L o T3l [T 7143 - | M4 TT
nbsr ining 2021 2430 ik A, 004 K123
—_—
T el ¥ T 7 nid - ]
Finunee cast i | (32015 (L2 {171 - 129512
020 [ | 21K} ) - T
i snginmge nx Ladd B0 1,07 [RIEES 2
2o 18N [IRi1] it - IR S0
Nt fpnmee oy 21 232824 [LEL] 195} - I11,5K9
20 JaT LT LT (7,073) S0k
Ihepwriatinigg pInE Bial il | B .M57 ___Th 97 AN AN
M2 IRl 52 R P28 505 . 420 A5
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 June 2021

Reconciliations of reportible sepment revenues, profit of losy, aeeets and Tinbiities and other material tems are as gnder

Revenues

Tutal revenue foe reportalle seppmients
Ehmanation of inler-sogmint revense
il iglated reveniie

Prafin | {loan) before tay

Tustal prodin o losis o repomtahle segiments
Ul ralless ntesd wrmamnis - Cillier expenses

Met peafll beloie iy

Aty

Tostal anzaets fowr reporiable sepmients

{iher unaiboemed amounis
ool adatdal faval pusets

Liabilitics

'Tortal liahibities for reportihle sepmenls
Crher unallowmed amoimis
Coasalidated total lahalilies

Civographicnl segncniy

Al s ansets of the Company are beld in Pikissn amd subssisntially ol the revenues of the Company are geserited i Pakastin

93

02 2020
[LEERCET] [ Kx IO Y
18176451 15,680.3440
{2.084.972) (LB04TT)
I 6, 00T 079 T3 AE0 300
1T AT LR
(239,158) {h1,123)
166T E [RIER K LAl
1x14.512 LR TRRE]
122K 145 228150
M2 68T 1204020
———— — e
241540 L.TRGALN
120,525 2w M
253421 2054620




wrlinwal Kpert. 202 T

CEBLEIN] HERLGO] [f Rt Y s L] NFs8LE USRI OreFos’1
T 6RETIT ELELD 1560 LRI iT3 1] FINTIT
[T st LEwy RGOS [T SL0° 1 BERTFT
IHan'sg) (T1s'60) UL £ (6L 19) Ixech (RIT1) 511
s LIL OLTSHEL DLE'RIT) (299 11750 (8T RLE GITEh LT |
[T £1's i599'T) s [ - - -
GLBY YETIR rEoLl ShETE Fosd E bl o [[F4 14
5% TIT) - ZIsE - LEReigi) - . =
(e 1 (8516870 - - - % . -
{1 Los) (185°69¢) Tara jol ) T s Lyt y ] {6 0y 199595} gL Iyl
FIlish Loz 6ns) (5He7L68) (S SLF ] 15979 et e 1) (e8]
SOFI0E'E UEB"6'T LT R90e0F REEAT tin'sltr f Lt [T 1]
(699} [GIE01LR) el Ten 9895 ) G EE Iovee ) S SC ) [Tl
N = fenlirsss) ira1 N9} r = LEFan (i
LEEE e300 AHGIENILR) (SRR A1 99rELs 1) FistaTl i UHETIa ] (T e
(M AT ] GRTLRET] D Ty TELLb'T BES01E] FEETREL] EEE BB
(293 05 E) {R11°896°) [T (a6 Ere) I3 Tyal (51 ss) el e AN TS
LA OREC LOFssys] LFLBFEE LID96E LR BOLTFOR"T Sy b RS0
x - 4 1Tt O0ES0ET] GRS ol | ST o TYILT9
LLEOREE) LOFS59°51 L S0 ESE T TR (R 8 E T | ITE e
(RNt (Tir'Ieth [ ETA iriciry) = ~ 155030 I 1n)
BHUEEE ] BLRLRNG] TR SEOED T TERTEL [N LT e AT FRLALE T
LW, =y} {onn, sui (00K SH) LT ] HiM, =) oo, =9} KD, S 0L, “sH)
orng 1ot [l 1203 g 1767 0T i T
[T ookspgg sdog WOIST A SSE] ausi g aonky)

[20¢ 2ung § papua «vaA ayi 104
SjuaLudjel [BIduRUL] 311 0] SAJON

P %ﬁ@ &mam@u wuin))

W ATy {5301 o]

SRR SHITL 13%]
LD Jaua g
(L118] fsiin B

1poad Fapiessidyy

ST 2ERaE 110 220§ nesrrdisg
ALEHEL L)

spousd gownl vy paiegas asuada o
sosumdva 1)

SIS FAT RISy

SFSUINT EONRGUESIP Oe Funlag

L0 S50HD

I UKRSTATR £
saigedd pang g

SATVS A0 1500
INTRAEY

LGRETR RN RN EE TH S
S35 LOUSEAIP 2210

12U = taoiuing Sped pong
AP SRV
s - goooiuny Aued prig |

HAADNH L

ik

94




e Heperl. 202 1

E = ' = RERELL | BYNEIN] & .-

= . - - Bis it [ - = TR puap i pasie| )
s - . 1 V0L T0aeL L - e prsppaip predu )
: ) - : 06T 51E AT R0 E = TR sypqeimd Joguo pue dgei)
* ] = - [l 8= [l . - Frr ¥ ol SHMHEEY 338
= z = = LE i b GRS = = 1 uEdj Uiy} S0a)

AREEY JITJ 1P RERE I L S [ruEung

Livils * TLEL08 * I = YL Tl G0 ¥y
* S : = RRLLBIT 3 BELLAIT 4 Frr R0 $IIUC|EG JOTG PO YR
* 3 = 5 igs'ol - L 2 Tt ¥ il SHJT A0 L0 pUE SR LY
- = - = HAa i = LU - FEFPOE O] sHap aper]
= ~ = r EY - - QR FEEPOE T spodap ey Too
LLing = o 1 = Q9IS - QUL - it A sy ey Foecp
= > = = SEeEl = kel 5 FEFPUEIT SRIUCIPE WL Foe |
s JUj §E PRIEEEIL p Spae (Eea] g
Fil'vna' | - - FLLEAR] FiLEeh 1 - ¥ FLLERG |
BALE6NT . . RO T66'T BACT6E ] - : RULTER"] i spong (Eaingy
9 = - @ 9 = * g AL sxuedaied prag] o sy
AR J)E) IF PRATVETIA A0 [EEIL R
[T [T apoy TTOT FHOF Oy
150y 3]
P rone d il
1B SIERGEY (L] e
IFir ] 0 e [l Ll | 1P ey IFpiaee) § Py i ot L |
ames JE ] JundinE Sul e SEHIUIAARSOY [REIU VL] JANES IUTEG-E

anjra Sief po mopmupesdde guieETaL ¢ st pEeue Junies g e Sapes ) IR PAINSERD RHI SRUIgeE] (Rt pae
SLMEE ELSTIUT] WOF BORTALEGIT S0 1N SPEJA0L WL S3ap ] SgATIg SO I3 o1 s BRE AARPOE ST (TR PUESERSE [PV PSR T POT SR S S0 SRegE O ELEET e

SIEA I]F) PUE MEGHITIGISSEL SUTONOIXY
SATIVA HIVA

SENIICTHESATVIAYALL

[Z07 2ung ()f papua apaf 2y 404
SjuauWde)g |BIdUBULA 21) 0] S21ON

poprt)e hundury &3&&. )

75




vl Hpert. 202 1

VTS POT LD PER MR, SRR, IO PR AN pUE T o pqeied Gnp pods apgeied Ainp e 1y - Hgeded s sapes

TEL IR o uop i dde pieniiean £ arr srome Fodues nog seeag UGS ] TS PUT S0 [Rrueg Sdagr Jaf san]es i1e) gl pasofapp we ey dundiiosy g

= = HETREL'] ATEE] Z
[ [T R it
3l z EEFIL £EEIL 2 e Ft
L AR 1] REEID L frE¥rl
T 5 L | ETT r i FrEW Ol
[ R0 CIELA6 | x S Eg6| Foivy
i ¥ BLEFEE] BLESEY] : ERE Y i
. = Els=] fie'el 1 ith®iC
- i HIEE LU . Ll o e g
- - LI - LS FEF PR
= . (3 T8 b . L
LB LTbwHs 2 TLELES 2 L e - i
& - ™ L WEril Ll
Al - LY ] P 5 il
£36TE LG [ y LT e
L' = & a9 v LT
Ik =t [l iR 1] N
o iy
ETETRTT 20 god
L= TTETTY My PR
(G £ 17227 bl el | 112227 L 8 el | PRIEERITY TN FIT
STYEA IF Y FENHER FRIALE )

(207 aunp Og papus awal ay) 40
SIUDLUDIELS [BIDUBUILY 1)) 0} SAION

Py m%\@ &“%% i)

Fqesrd

gried wu PUsHILe ST @O S0ELPE 2PN )]

samjidng U SaMUEAPE SpLIL 1)

PEIPLAL paluirgey
pasprap peeduyy
sapqeied 1o poeapray
Sl Feay

SO0EN 315} IE PANHEAR 100 SHAGEI] [T g

VMG NG PIE ey
SIRTAIIIN IO [LR L200EApY
Shpp el

Lrcfa i 0 FREER 1 S0
sybsindap w Suary
SHLTEAIAEE WL S0
sraneape s fua)

IREA JIT] I PRSI0 S04 S0 e [TET |

SPUTS ERITEY
saniedhios pogesy jo sarOgg

HTELIN) W pRIEeal Sy [EIEi g

SUBIERIERL [ELSUTL B SRR

Err

kF

76




45

44

4.7

Angoul Fepert, 2021

Murree Browery Company Liniled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Mesarement of fir valoes

Al fimanicial assets and fnangisl lamines are mitialiy reeoeal o) Gur villse ol enisideritsen pind or soedived, net of Iramuiine gusts a8
appropiate, The inissal ssets ind Fabilites of the Company approimage ther camving valucs, A numboer ol Company’s aecoumting padicics and
ilikelontsres nequire. the determination of fair valoe, for finangial sosts, Fair vales hivg heoen determamad S mceurement andion dinglisige
pairposes basesd om the fillowing imethods

Nom - derlvative financial gt

Thie fair vadise ol non-derivative lnanghil msets w artimsated smsidering e T murket values or the el OF securitics wath similar manifity and
credit rbing This G vabie is determmned fordisclosure puipoes,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Thee Conpsy i exposare o i Flbowing sk arsing (om Ganan ] imsirunsis)

- el i sk (Mo b T
= Laguidtity risk (None 428}
= Markut sk (e 44.8)

Klsk munageniont framework

T Haord aof 1 onrs bk el naspuonsibiibiny for e establislunent and overight of e Company's sk manigement framework, The Roard 1
pesponsthle for developag pnd monsaring the Compony's risd, g e pilicien,

e Comgany's sk maypesent policics ane extabliched 1o dentify wnd salyse the risky facedl by the Company, 10 ot uppropriate risk Llinuts wml
costetiibs, sl oy i risks and sdherenee b Bimiis, Risk mamipgecnt policies ind systoms afe eviewed rpilinly o reflec) changes in market
cunaditions and the Company’s aevities, The Compary, thrigl ity irining sml manapement slandanls and provedures, auns e msiatain a
dingptined wnd comstnactive confral envimmmint in whieh ol emphgees andemiand theis doles aid ohl g,

Thve Aol Coivmbiiee overees i iiiagament moneoe compliance with the Coompany’s rink mmiacment policies nind procedares anid nevicws
the -‘llll-'l.|'-|-l'}' of the risk minmeine Frammscwiork i nelation o the nsks faced by the Comipuny: The Audit Comamiiee e wssintail i Hx iversight nsle
by Ingiermnl Ausdin, Tonemeal Avsht wmbertikes bosh regalan s widelas ritvicwn vk mangement confrods and procedures, the resulis ol wingh arg
reprured b b Avlis Comimieg,

Credit risk

Crodit risk B e misk of fitangial Toss W the Company i1 cintoneer o coanterpeny 1o s (inamil inansmm faals b npeet its goniractund obllgatony,
wial agises prancipally fom trade debts, ndvances and deposits, interest neerued, st neeeivablis, mirgm o ettt of gunmmiey and honk balanges,
I cerrying i of financial sscts epiesents ke moxEnum eredin expomsne, The Compunys credit ek exposunes s eieporized under the
Tl bow i gt gl

Tendde and other Fecelvililes

The Company’s exposurg 10 eredin rvk o mfTueneed mamty by e andividin] chameteristics ol cach custnimerdidenlers. The Company s
extablishid 4 oredil pobicy under whivh cach new customer i inayeed individual ly for ereditwontingss hafoee the Company™s standasd payimen
o and condimons me offened, Cradit Tonits arg exiablishel for cagl customer, which ane segularly revigwed il approved by the managenwent
Cstommies it Gl o meet the Companys hinchmur erédiwinbingss may transict with the Compuny only an 4 prepaymient I

Coneeniration of eredin rlsk

Pl catrying aimount of fnaneinl assels mepresats the misimam eniil expoong, The ki expavarg tiy credit risk 3 g reporting, date bs i
fodlamws

e | 200
Mute {00l i B, 00
[ LemIm sl viimges 22 o 444 [RE AT 17056
Lavng term mvendimadinis 1 S1d.400 417473
st erm diponits 24 nnd 44,4 RER T 35,754
Trmbe e 2 amd 44,4 nan 500
Advances and other receivhles i} 16,732 15.51_3
ik bsliees 30 v A 2K, T 1,200 137
2T AR | BTH 079
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Murree é%mmg/ Company Liniled

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Cigopraphically there i o poseentmation of enedit ridk a0 e repoisting date (2020 NHL The musimuny expodine 1o credil sisk For finaneal gssets a1
the reportang dite by lyps ol conter pany s ak follyws

o 202}
{ Ry, kb R TR
Frsm gov@mment malibdsiis S04, 40 517473
Binisks and Sl ovstaniniomns 20, T 1200 32T
Dilhers [N LS U4d 278
R T XN
2021 20240
Giross lpuirement Linns frmpairiens

Faws pllowance for expeciod eredil Bass { Bow, D1 { . Wy
Tl agim e aof brivde et ot e owportmg daby 15 o Tolloss:
Lizss than g RS R - 31,580
Liver one year - . LT

A :_,:"Iﬁ - 32 g -

Pher sverrmen | thed allowiinge Tor imgaement morespect of il debis Suning the ST I v et 2, |

Tz dawphediak cannt in nespoct ol trade debis are usied 1 recond impaimmeent T wless dae Clommpany e satisfidd that i recimery of the smaount
swarg b stk s posnt the amsaunt considenad srecovenible mowriten ol agninst e Gainesl s directly,

i Conngany hiss ou collateral in respeet ol finaseial soaels exposesd g enelin ik, ke om past exreiaeive, i belicves i et i
Alrendy pronled Sor in these Gl sttemenis, oo funhes apaitment is iequisad o be necogmized agaimst any Tnancal sty of the Comgany.

el ueabing off Tiniincial nvets

i enclit quinhiny of compimy’s Mnangiin] asets Rive b el below by ofereace o exiemal credit vting of eounterpitmies desenmiised by
Moody's Investor Sgeviees Inc., Fakistan Credil Banng Agency Limited (PACHA) pnt JCR - VIS Credin Ranng Company Limned (JCR - Y151 The
citnterpiries fod which extomal conhit ratings wene not nvailable have Bam assesed by reference o mtenmd erodin mibmps determingd Bused wi
their hastorseal infonmtion fe any detalt s meeing bl

A tmncsbywin ol the creei qualing if fimanial psets tisl ane neiber past doe mar imgatred i as il

2021 2020
Ruiing (LA { R TI00H
Liang term adyancen
Counerpitmes without extenal credit miting 13,5945 [ 7.050
Laomg berm invistmeniv
Conmiterpumiss witk extermn] eredit rating Ii- 14, At 5| 74T
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| S
ez perm dlepembis Radimg {Ha Wi { B 01
Contgrpart én with sulsmmid ersbil sasng AAd 4 [£]
Cnmbereartics silb oxternal ceedil ramng AA Tk 0,026
Lantermintics sk exsenid eradil ey Ahe 21, ToN i
ampnborpartivs wollwud exlermal creidi mimg Kbl b K aas
REET LER LT
Trady debiby
{ounigrmaniies sl entermil orald namy A = AT
Goenledpartim with easaminl et atimg Al A bl o Ads
Camkniyrmsarioes winl el el g AAA 1402 LA
Counierpanmees withous extormel ¢rda Eulng TR kIR ]
RER TR RLET
Advi e, repaynean add sihor rodvivabsley
onnlerpariss with exsemnl codie ity =
Counlerpariees without eagemal redi esing Ih.712 | 15,5070
16703 15508
Wanmk lsaladives
Canirlenmartics witl vuscmipl cradil istisg Al+ 2T LTIV
Caniilermesrivs wilh essonial coodil vasing Al In,ﬂ."l (BN L]
Caounlemariics wirh ¢usenial cnslin isaing A=l ie R LY
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Clomprle rpertios wathien exsemat eredi miing S 0l
LA, T [ PENTT R
1702500 AR
Ligquidity ik SETe— ey

Loy pob ot pod, thil e Lomspany well gngounicr ilivuly e meeeing she whlganons sssos ] wath its Tnangial b litses that ase seitbed
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labildies when dhig, sl Boah niensil sl sircse] oomlilions, wilul shcurfing uigeeplible lusses or pakimy dasnape s il Canaany's
wepibliilion

Expasure b luidiry risk

Lmjialety risk ee thy meek tlipt the Compumy will met be able (0 mee) s Gniegal abbgatinns 2 they G dee, Prabent Dausidsny sk msmeemeni
ilics mdiinnmninp suificions cash sl ||MJIJI'|_I¢‘ sturiigs, The wvaalahsliny of Tundemg 1o s mlogete mmunl oF soimmsivd coashit taadition sl
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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T ol enpected thint the cash Doasoincheded mothe marerdy wnafsis coabd oeowr signilicantly carlior or at sigmilcamtly diffenent smounts,

The coptrsctunl cush fows sgkaling to lrane leasd babsilines e begn delermmaned on e Bisis of grpedied marh wp nites The merkeup nies v
been dizclosed moaote 10 6 these Snancial stofcments

Market risk

Markat mak fx the ek tine ehimgon b oirket prves, sieh s i escliangs s, mieres tites and gty preces wall affevt the Clmpiay’s
income o the value of it baldings of fnancal badrnnenss, The obpeetive of market msk menipement s 6 manage and comirsd ket risk
enpmbines witlin augeptalle parmmetens, while sptinveng the nalmm on tsk,

Foreign carreney risk

Fhe Comipany i aaprmed b gurmaty ek e bl caten) il there s o sl beiween (e cumencics i wheeh sales, parcloses il siber
wransdcteons ind o limees are denoauietead s the fimetiomal curremy ol the |'.'|.'|I'|'I-j'\JI'I-:.!. The functzonul STy ol the I"nmp;m’- 15 Pakisim Hupee
(PRRY The vlrtaney in whish o taimictions and Balanoes ane promaeily denomimited s LS Dollas (LSO, The Conyuimy’s putenlial Gingign
CITSICY Sl COmprisge

Tennaasctivnal eapumary in respect OF non (nctional Curneney maneiany i,
= Trammactional exposure (o eeapest of non Nenctivnad sursemey espendiiare and fvenioes

Transuetionil exposure i eesjaect of mom ooeonal oo reeiy msneiary ems

Maemctory i, inclsding finimcml oty ond linbilities, deiaiimnted in cuiinces obee b i Gimeional guereney of the Company are
preemddiganlly restanedd to PR cyuavatent, and the sssocnied gain of [oss s Gken 10 the peofit o loss, The (aneren curmeney sk relipted to moenetary
Husin 18 mantingsed s ot ol thie sk imimageimeht sinsegy,

Tramsuetional exgosure in respeet of s Tunctional currency cxprnditinre anid resenues

erain opyrating and capiial expendieme (s mcumad by the Company i camencas odher thim e fengtional cumeney, Ceram soles revenue is
wiimel 10 enrrengics seher than the functinal eurrency of the Campony, These careney nsks zre momiged s pan of overall fisk manigenient
stratcpy, The Compone dows sl gniee gt Fowand éscliange eonints,

Expesury to foreign carrency risk an vese ol wonelary balanoes

0zl M2
L8 Lisey K, LISy
Vi “Ei iy TR
I - - S,280 M
Ineetieat Acdived on TIXK - - (R iy
Ik bulangey 41,401 34 | tins 1
Thee Bl segrilican exchunge ries wore spglicd durisg: s ywar|
Averaee rate Hepsorting dale rafe
2 RO 02l i
Ha, R

FhE per Us Daollar 162,50 158,28 157,50 16750

Forreken currency semsitivity anilysis

Fulbowing e the deimmsstition of the xemativity 100 ranimhly possible change i escling pate of LSE appliod o msets ol babibises os a0 (e
e porting duaie fepresenal b foncym curmomey, witly ol dilver varidbles hebd comatant, of the Coppanys peofil hefirg L,

02l R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the yvear ended 30 June 202/

Interest rale risk

The interest rate risk ix The risk that the vabue of the linamelal mstriment well Quetuite due o changes i e marker mterest rales. The Uompany
oy it hiwe Habalitngs 3 variable rates,

Eapassare D iniercst rite risk

At the reportmy, date the nteres e profile of e Company's interest henniny, finmiscaal iisinanents wiis as fullowes:

Eileytive inierest rate Nate Currying amonnts
2n2 RITRIT 2021 200

Interest rute risk [ 1 %) o B D { B TR0
Fixwl rate iostraments
Funanes) issets L25% 10 1% 355 w 12.62%, 22,13 amd 3 1.692,524 1192558

Per anpim [ET AR
Frmzneal liabilities RSSO0 B S0% B 2 [AASY, 1] 25,800 (IR

T amEm [Ier 2arkIn

1,918,324 I3 e T

Fair value sensilivity pnalysis for fived rate instraments

The €ompany dioes m sccount fne any finad rate linancial assets wnd Babilioes w0 e videe throegh profie o foss, Therelore, o change i
inferast mites 2 the sepoming date winald i alfeet profit o loes,

Caxh flow seasitivity analyvsis for variable eafe instromeats

There are tiy outstanding variable mie instruments ol the reportaig dite (30200 Kil), Henee the Compuany is mob expased 1o any virahle intenest
Fu ik

Urher murket price risk
The prmiary goal of e COmpany’s IVestinent sSEeEeey i 6o M mvesimeal eums on seiplus funds. The Company adaops a palicy o
ersring o minimae s price nsk by investing i secunibes having sl market perfimmanee, ot investiments aie detigraled s ekl for

trsling buegiise heer performance s actively monitored aod these ane manaped on & far value basss, Bguily price risk s s investnents i1
Tiakr wiilise Uil pealit o Inks

Sensitivity anulvais - equity price risk
For quated investiments classilied s FVTIL, 100 basis polm imerease i murket prive i seporting dute would hive imereased profll by R 19,94

ittt (2020 R, 16,73 mnalbion): enegual chiomee in the opporite directinn would hivve decreoses] profit by the sanve amount. The analysis
el e i s hasis foe 3020 and assames O all oiber vanahbes remam the same,
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Muasurvinienl
45 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION MNee sy 2021 20
45,0 Liguor Division - Rewalpiod|
{a)  Capacity of industris! unie
Beer and Non Aleobwolic Bevermpes {NAR) Lirres A4, TH2 2 54,702,240
[akiziae Mude Forgign Liguor (PMIL) Caren (2 MG} 2400800 2,350, 50k
o Alcoholie Products {NAT) Litres &y, L0001 Sév, 168 TIHA
iy Actunl production
Beer ol Non Alvoholid Beverages (NAR) Litren A5, 20K MK AL N8R
Pakestien Made Farvign Liguosr (PMELY Cinis 13 LG 1A% 1 AT0A420
MNon Aleodiolic Prowducts (ALY 454 Litres 54,505,047 My 4y 27
452 Tups Division
i Rowssalpal i
ia) Cupacity af indasi sl anin
Pt piseh jusies it AR IINL L L SRG000
ik Avtual produciion
Tertra ik uiives Lilgs 18616218 17797041
iy Hattar
fay  Capacity of industrial unit
Fuas prodhscts Clirloms A75 o ATH.0000
Junee (NI & Bey 1ithos 500,000 o, Sy,
Mineral water Litres 0,424,000 0,424,000
Titrapak fuices Litres A50000,000) RN
ihy  Awtual preduction
Foul produis Caitons Y714 | 21,504
Tuice (NIE & Ren 454 Litrgs FAT R EEY 3R ADR
Mlineral water 454 Litres FLEA3 Ra 2970,760
Tetrapak jurces Litries 6,725 450,024
453 Galiss Divisioi - Hattar
fwy  Meliing capavity M, Tons 1,154 40,1 800
(bh Awtual production = CGilass melied M, Tons LR A3,551

454 Nomial capacity is bised on 26 wurkung davs per monih willn ong shal) of 5 s per e, Antml productan reprosents mikiple shilis
undBemuhen kevpimg in view the market demged.

455 The dillerenee is aue v the wapply aind seasonal donand of the ke,

A TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
Reluved paries comprise of direciom, mtties over which (he dieectors ane ible m exercise sigmilivant infleence. entitios winli Comnvon
directars, mmafor sharchellers, st retirement funds and hey management personnel, Fidamees with relied partics ang shown m nees © 10 the

firncial statements, The transactions with relaial parties, sther than nanuneriion and benetits w Cliel’ Executive Ofticer and directors which
are drselosed i nate 41 1o the fininciml aastements, ane s follows
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Mame of Relnted Purty Miture of Rolationship Percentage  Nuture of transactivns {1 2020
of share during the year (. 01 (s X0
haldlng
B0 Labul )i & Clompiny Ao iited gpmgany on 17.75%% Sales commission 125,455 415, 5 Ker
{Private) Lamined deepunt of coinamion Servites oguimed 16,200 | M1
direciorship Dhiviclend paid 122,509 120,268
Kingsway Fund Assoiited eompany 21.73% Ihwiclemd pid 106, K87 2R
Board of dinectoes L 200 Diviedend pid 1311392 [ 5484145
Directions’ relatives Dhinculoes’ pelatives T, 30005 Ihvidlend pant I-L_I,IJ{; 112370
Sl retvement beneli plan . RiafT retimement fungs mil Contribution by the 8,200 TR
Proavident fund Company
Saafl retirement benefit plan . Stalf retieerment funds il Cunimbatinn by (he £ 5oy LhHl
Pemisaom fhikil Lampuiny
Bhandar Foumdiion Chielevecutive ufliver acis il Dhomation rand 1500 1 Atk
s 4 Trustee
Al At Muanigement Asseinted company on Nl Receip of Divadend on 11046 [ERIATS
Avcoatt of common ] funds
dirceturshin Ihividend eeinvestrnent BAT4 RIET
in mittual fiends
Key Manapiemen! Fersonnel Ky msmigement il Remyieration 47,754 A

Dhetitilx of commpensata W Ky miagenent personnel ..-nn'lprh.ing of ehuel exoeutive oltieer, dircciors and exguuiiveg ix discbised in noge 42

Following porticulars felae b associatod company, iscomponited sulside Pakistin, with whom the Company fus citérdd it immsictiogs

chierning the your,

Fartivulars

Dietuils

Mo of assowiate
Registenal oddresx

Eountry el ineorporation
Hasas of asspcalion
Apurepate perceniaze of sharchaddjnge

Kingsway Fund

15 Avenae LF, Keninedy, L-1858 Lusembourg, Grind Pruchy
of Luxembaurg

Coranel Buehy of Lusemboury

Sharelolder with significant influenee

0,565, HRE (2173 %: ) ordinary shares of Rs. H) cach

Fullowing partienlan relate to the directons, o the Company, i their relatives with whiam the Company hiss enterad into s o durigs

1he viens
Shires held in the Compiony

Mame Baxis ufrwt:linnshij_ Sumbers Fercentape
e, Lspharyir M, Blandim Civiel Exeeutive (Hlicer (0 FO) 4,003,180 1,030
Ol Mucun Afeal Chairman 1852 kY,
Mrs, (roshie M, Bhandara Dinegior 1004, 1172 R
M Purving Alliter Idirveeos IRV LR
Mr. Anmie L Shinw [Rrector 14184 TS
M il Sajjad Disreeior (REIT LRV
Mr. Shabbag Hanler Aghy Dareclonr 218 by
e, Kl A Mine [rregion 1,260 11,0401
Mis, Jagmine Hhanglars Chme Gamaly member of Clal) k8200 1210
M, Limshied M. Blamadira Cliwr Tamily memtlwr of CEQ I OIS0KT a5,
M, Murizeh M, Blanidies Clusa family membser o CEQ 11487 o 3
Mr. fane Lsphanyvar Bhdas Closy famaly membser of CEO SO I0R LRI
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the vear ended 30 June 2021

47 EMPLOYEERES PROVIDENT FUND TRUST

AL the ivestments oul of providen) fusd tnese hive been made in aécondance with the provisions of Seetion 218 of the LConmprainics Al, 2017
andd conditions hpﬂl..'llﬁi':l IiL..-rL-undq_'f,

021 2020
4% NUMBLER OF EMPLOVEES (Number) | Wumber)
Enpsboyecs ol vear gnd 1,680 1813
Averni emplivees duning the year 1674 1.543

44 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Tl Bawdd of Direvtors of the Compiy in the meeting held on 1 7ih September 2021 proogrsied Fimd casly dividend of Y e Ba 100 e
shiine (2020: 50% e, Ry 5 per share) These fimancial stitements do oot reflect the proposed final dividend on ordinary shares as payahle,
sty sl B aveanted for in e skneomen of changes o quiy is an appropriation from the uiapproprinled profie (oot vear ending 30 June
2002

n GENFRAL

So.0 0 Dividend payable 1o the Muslim sharcholders s deemed o be appropristed from ineonse arsing from the Company's mvestments, non-
aleasholiv profits aasl sentil ingomne,

51 APFROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fhiese Binameind statermenls were suthoraed for isue by the Bosed of Directors of the Company in their meeting bekd on 170 Seplember 2021

»

CHIRF FINANG AL OFFICRI CIIEF EXHCLTIVE 00 FI0CER IR TON
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PROXY FORM
[Section 137 of the Companies Act, 2017]
MURREE BREWERY COMPANY LIMITED
3-National Park Road. Rawalpindi

Eud%}i E%Eﬁ' E 1860

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Company Limited
J-Mational Park Roud, Rawalpindi.

1/ We sfo or dlo or wio o

being a member of Murree Brewery Company Limited and holder of __ ordinary shares as per

registered Folio / CDC Participant 1D #, and CDC Sub Aceount # / CDC Investor Account I1 #
_hereby appoint Mr/Mrs, sfo or dfoor wio

CNICH ) r'o having registered  Folio / CDC  Parbcipant 1T #,

and CDC Sub Accounmt & / CDC Investor  Accoumt 1D #
as my/our proxy to attend and vote on my/our behalf at the Annual General

Mc:mmb of the Company 1o be held at 9:30 a.m., on Friday. October 22, 2021 a1 Registered Office, 3-National Park
Road, Rawalpindi or at any adjournment thereof.

| Affix R, /-
Revenue Stamp Signature of Member
- : {Signature should agree with the specimen
registered with the Company).

Dated this duy of October, 2021
Witnesses:
1+ Signature 2} Signature
Mame - Name
Address ) Adllreas
CNIC or Passport # ' CNIC or Passport f .

Impaortant notes:

1. No person shall act as proxy unless e himsell is member of the Company, except that o corporate entity may appoint § person
who 15 not & member, Non-natural members must fumish board resolution [ power af’ attormey with specimen signatures of
proxy wlong with the proxy form,

2. Adtested copics of the CNIC or the Passport of the member and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form. The proxy
shall produee original CNIC or onginal passport at the ime of the meeting,

3. Proxies in order 1o be effective must be received by the Company, Murree Brewery Company Limited,, 3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi not less than forty-cight (48) hours {excluding non-working days) before the time for holding the mecting,

4. CDC Sharcholders and their proxies are each reguesied 1o aitach an sttesied photocopy of their Computerized National Tdentity
Cand (UNIC) or Passport with the proxy form before submission o the Company (Origingl CNIC 7 Passport is required 10 be
produged ol the lime of the meeting),

o

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Dirgctors” resolution |/ power of anomey with specimen signature of the person
puamindted (o represent and vole on behalf of the corporte entity shall be sulsmitted (unless it bas been provided carlien) along
with proxy fom to the Company.
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The Company Secretary
Murree Brewery Co. Ltd.
3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi.
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Murree Brewery Company Limited

Bank Account Detail for Payment of Cash Dividend
(Mandatory Requirement as per the Companies Act, 2017)

Dear Shargholder,

This is 1o inform you that in accordance with the Seetion 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, uny dividend pavable in cash
shall enly be paid through cléctronic mode dircetly into the bank account designated by the entitled sharcholder. Please
note that giving bank mandute for dividend payments is mandatory and in order 1o comply with this regulatory
requirement and to avail the facility of direct credit of dividend amount in your bank account, you are requested to
please provide the following information:

Details of Sharcholder

_Nume of sharcholder | ———— |
Father’s Nume
CDC neeount No / Folio Na, =

"CNIC / Passpon No _ ]
Cell number & Landling number ) :

| Eimaal address (Mandatory)

Details of Bank Account

litle of Bank Accoum

International — Bank  Account |[p K[ | [ | i =1 | TTTT Tiaadigis)
Number (IBAN) * Mandatory™ '_L [ ['1 | [ J L - ki) |

(Kindly provide vour seeurate TBAN number after consulling with vour respective bank
branch since in case ol any emor or omission in given IBAN, the Compuny will not be
haeld responsible i any manmer for any loss or delay in your cash dividend payment).

| Bank's Name ~
| Branch Nume
Branch Address

It s stated that the above-mentioned information s correet and in case of any change therein, 1/ we will inimedintely
intmate Participant i.e. Murree Brewery Company Limited or its Share Registrar i.e. CDC Share Registrar Services
Limited, C'DC House, 9498, Block B, 8.M.C.H.8, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karuchi, 74400, Pakistun, accordingly,

Signature of Sharcholder

You ure requested to kindly send us this letter immediately duly filled in and signed by you along with legible
photocopy of your valid CNIC / passpornt a1 our address. Murree Brewery Company Limited, 3-National Park Road,
Rawalpindi, Pakistan,

Regands,
Company Secretary

Murree Brewery Company Limited
J«National Park Road, Rawalpindi, Pakistan,
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